ITEM #1
Discussion and/or Action regarding
General Manager Draft Employment Agreement

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
DISTRICT GENERAL MANAGER
THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 2nd day of
[June], 2020 (“Effective Date”), by and between the Del Paso Manor Water District, a California
county water district (the “District”) and Adam Coyan (“Employee”), an individual. The District
and Employee may individually be referred to herein as “Party” or collectively as “Parties”. There
are no other parties to this Agreement.
RECITALS
A. The District has created the position of District manager ("General Manager"),
pursuant to Water Code section 30540(a), to be the administrative head of the District
government under the direction and control of the District's Board of Directors ("Board"); and
B.
The District has been actively recruiting for the position of General Manager and
has interviewed numerous qualified applicants; and
C. The Board will evaluate Employee's knowledge, experience, administrative skills
and abilities, as evidenced in his professional background and determine if Employee is the best
candidate within the District's General Manager salary range and is qualified to fill the position
of General Manager. Employee shall only be appointed to the position of General Manager upon
Board approval;
D. The Parties desire to execute this Agreement pursuant to the authority of and subject
to the provisions of Government Code Section 53260 et seq. to appoint Employee as the General
Manager for the District.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants entered into between the
Parties, and in consideration of the benefits that accrue to each, it is agreed as follows:
Section 1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above ("Recitals") are true and correct and are hereby
incorporated into and made part of this Agreement by this reference. In the event of any
inconsistency between the Recitals and Sections 1 through 9 of this Agreement, Sections 1 through
9 shall prevail.
Section 2. Appointment of General Manager, Duties and Term
Section 2.1 Appointment of General Manager. Subject to the Board’s approval,
Employee is hereby appointed to the position of General Manager, in and for the District, to
perform the function and duties of the General Manager as specified in this Agreement, and
Employee accepts such appointment and employment pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.
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Section 2.2 Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on July 6, 2020 (the
“Effective Date”) and shall continue until terminated by one or both of the Parties ("Term"), as
outlined in Section 5 of this Agreement.
Section 2.3. General Manager Duties. For the Term, Employee shall perform the
functions of the General Manager position in accordance with Water Code sections 30580 and
30581, the terms of this Agreement, and the District's General Manager job description, last ratified
May of 2020, which is attached hereto as Exhibit A. Employee's duties, responsibilities, and
limitations as General Manager include, but are not limited to:
A.
Under direction of the Board, Employee shall be in charge of the administration,
personnel and general affairs of the District. Employee shall represent the Board's policies and
programs with other employees, community organizations and the general public. Employee shall
report to the Board as needed, including at regular and special meetings, work with other
employees of the District, including preparation of contracts, review of budget requests, and to
make those recommendations reasonably necessary to run the District.
B.
Employee does not have authority to enter into any contract in excess of Two
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) without the express consent of the Board. Employee
has authority to enter into any contract up to Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00),
which expenditure is set forth in the approved annual budget, consistent with District Ordinance,
Resolution or Policy Manual or any modifications thereto, which sets forth the General
Manager’s contracting authority.
C.
Employee shall conduct the business of the District and report to the District at
general or other meetings noticed by the District. Employee shall otherwise have the
responsibility and authority for operation of all works of the District, including its infrastructure,
reservoirs, tanks, water treatment plants, water conveyance, water pipelines, and any and all other
equipment and property. Employee shall be responsible for supervising and directing personnel
at the District, including personnel actions. However, Employee shall not have the authority to
alter the job position or compensation of any employee without express permission and consent
of the Board.
D.
Employee shall become fully aware and knowledgeable of the requirements of the
applicable job duties of the General Manager. Employee acknowledges receipt of a copy of the
job description for General Manager for the Del Paso Manor Water District, last ratified as of
May, 2020, attached as Exhibit A. Employee represents to have the time, skill and background
in order to properly effectuate those job duties.
Section 2.4 No Secondary Employment. Employee agrees to devote all of his productive
time, ability and attention to the District's business. During the Term of this Agreement, Employee
shall not hold secondary employment, and shall be employed exclusively by the District, subject
to any exceptions approved in writing by the Board. Provided, however, that Employee has the
right to volunteer for such nonprofit organizations as he may see fit; and further provided that such
volunteer services shall not interfere with his duties as General Manager.
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Section 2.5 Exempt Position. The position of General Manager is an exempt position for
purposes of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 (29 U.S.C. § 201 et seq.). The general business
hours for District employees are Monday through Friday, 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. This full-time
employment will typically average forty (40) hours of work per week. Employee's typical working
hours will be during regular business hours, plus evening hours as needed to attend Board meetings
and other District business. However, it is recognized by the Parties that Employee's hours may
exceed forty (40) hours of work per week. As such, Employee shall not receive overtime or extra
compensation for hours worked outside of general business hours, which are necessary to fulfill
the duties of the General Manager position.
Section 2.6 At-Will Employment. Employee is an "at will" employee serving at the
pleasure of the Board, as provided in Water Code section 30544. Accordingly, the Board may
terminate Employee's employment at any time, with or without cause, by a three-fifths (3/5) vote
of the Board.
Section 2.7 No Property Right in Employment. Employee understands and agrees that
the terms of his employment are governed only by this Agreement and that no right of employment
for any specific term is created by this Agreement. Employee further understands that based on his
“at will” employment status, he acquires no property interest in his employment by virtue of this
Agreement, and that he is not entitled to an administrative hearing or other due process for any
disciplinary actions, including termination, by the District.
Section 2.8 No Membership in Bargaining Unit. Employee understands that he is not a
member of any bargaining unit and is not covered by the terms of any Memorandum of
Understanding with any represented or unrepresented group of District employees.
Section 3. Compensation.
3.1 Base Salary. Employee shall be paid at a rate of One Hundred Ten Thousand Dollars
($110,000.00) (“Base Salary”) per year. Payments will be made on regularly scheduled payroll
dates, and shall be subject to all applicable payroll withholdings. Such compensation shall be the
only compensation the District pays and the Employee receives for Employee's services under this
Agreement.
Section 3.2 Employee Benefits. During the Term of this Agreement, the District agrees to
provide such benefits are as shown in Exhibit B, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein
by this reference.
Section 3.3 Vacation Leave. Employee shall accrue vacation leave at a rate of [3.08] hours
per biweekly pay period, or up to a maximum of [80] hours per year. Employees hired after June
1, 2019 may not accrue more than 150% of the annual vacation accrual rate applicable to them.
Upon reaching the maximum annual accrual, vacation shall cease to accrue until the accrued
vacation days are reduced below the maximum by usage of vacation leave. By way of example,
an employee during his/her first three years of employment may not accrue more than 15 days of
vacation leave. Employee will have forty (40) hours of Vacation credited upon date of hire and
available for use immediately as needed.
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Section 3.4 Sick Leave. Employee shall accrue sick leave at a rate of [3.69] hours for every
biweekly pay period, up to a [96] hours or [12] work days per year. Employee shall begin accruing
sick leave on the first day of his employment with the District. Sick leave is not permitted to be
sold back.
Section 3.5. Holidays. Employee shall be entitled to observe, with pay, the twelve (12)
observed holidays as described in Exhibit B Employee Benefits.
Section 3.6. District-Related Business Travel Reimbursement. Employee’s duties
require that he have continuously available transportation for District business or other related
purposes. Employee agrees to provide and utilize his own vehicle for District-related business. The
District shall reimburse Employee for any District-related business travel at the Internal Revenue
Service (“IRS”) mileage rate, which may change from time to time.
Section 3.7. District-Related Business Travel Reimbursement. District shall provide a
District-owned smart phone with data plan for use solely by Employee in his position as Director
of Utilities/General Manager/Accounts Manager.
Section 4. Performance Evaluation. For the first year of this Agreement, performance
evaluations shall be conducted by the Board of Directors following the end of the sixth (6th) and
twelfth (12th) month following the Effective Date of this Agreement. After the first year of this
Agreement, performance evaluations, shall be conducted annually by the Board of Directors in
November of each year. The process, at a minimum, shall include the opportunity for both Parties
to: (A) prepare a written evaluation, (B) meet and discuss the evaluation, and (C) present a written
summary of the evaluation results.
Section 5. Termination of Employment and Severance.
Section 5.1. Voluntary Resignation. Employee may resign at any time and agrees to give
the District at least sixty (60) days advance written notice of the effective date of Employee’s
resignation, unless the Parties otherwise agree in writing. If Employee retires from full time public
service with the District, Employee shall provide at least three (3) months advance written notice.
Employee’s actual retirement date will be mutually established between the Parties. During the
notice period, all rights and obligations of the Parties under this Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect. Promptly after the effective date of resignation, the District shall pay to Employee
all salary and benefit amounts both accrued and owing under this Agreement. In the event of
voluntary resignation, Employee shall not be entitled to Severance as set forth in Section 5.3 of
this Agreement.
Section 5.2. Termination by the Board. The Board may terminate this Agreement and
remove Employee from his position as the General Manager at any time with or without cause by
a three-fifths (3/5) vote of the entire Board. Upon termination, for any reason, the District shall
compensate Employee for all accrued vacation leave. This compensation shall be based upon
Employee’s salary as of the date of employment termination.
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Section 5.3. Termination Without Good Cause. In the event the District terminates this
Agreement without cause, the District may elect to pay Employee up to a sum equal to three (3)
months Base Salary (“Severance”). This potential Severance is subject to the restrictions of
Government Code section 53260, which sets out the maximum amount of Severance pay that
Employee may receive. Any cash settlement related to the termination of this Agreement received
by Employee from the District shall be fully reimbursed to the District if Employee is convicted
of a crime involving an abuse of his office or position while employed with the District pursuant
to Government Code section 53243.2. This Severance shall be paid in the same manner as other
employees, unless otherwise agreed to by the District and Employee. In the event the District
terminates this Agreement, Employee shall be entitled to continued medical and dental benefits at
his cost pursuant to the provisions of the federal Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation
Act.
Section 5.4. Termination For Good Cause. The District may at any time immediately
terminate this Agreement for Good Cause as defined in this Section 5.4. If Employee is terminated
for good cause, the District shall not be required to pay any Severance under this Agreement, and
the District shall have no obligation to Employee beyond those benefits accrued as of Employee’s
last day of employment and those the District is obligated to provide under federal or state law.
“Good Cause” for purposes of this Agreement, means a fair and honest cause or reason for
termination. These reasons include, but are not limited to:
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1.

Conviction of a felony;

2.

Disclosing confidential information of the District;

3.

Gross carelessness or misconduct;

4.

Unjustifiable and willful neglect of the duties described in this Agreement;

5.

Mismanagement;

6.

Nonperformance of duties;

7.

Any conduct which violates the District’s Personnel Rules and for which a
District employee may be terminated;

8.

Repeated and protracted unexcused absences from General Manager’s
office and duties;

9.

Willful destruction or misuse of District property;

10.

Conduct that in any way has a direct, substantial, and adverse effect on the
District’s reputation;

11.

Willful violation of federal, state or District discrimination laws;

12.

Continued substance abuse which adversely affects performance of
Employee’s duties as General Manager;

13.

Refusal to take or subscribe any oath or affirmation which is required by
law;

14.

Permanent disability that renders Employee unable to perform the
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essential functions of his job with or without reasonable
accommodation which places an undue burden on the District or
Employee becoming otherwise unable to perform the duties of
General Manager, by reason of sickness, accident, illness, injury,
mental incapacity or health for a period of six (6) weeks following
the exhaustion of all available leave balances and any applicable
Family Medical Leave Act or California Medical Leave Act
leaves, or where the same occurs for forty (40) working days over
a sixty (60) working day period following exhaustion of such
leaves;
15. Dishonesty;
16. Engaging in other employment or activities which conflict with,
or present the appearance or possibility of conflicting with the
District’s legitimate business interests; or
17. Continuous or repeated failure or refusal to perform Employee’s
duties to the standards set by the District.
Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, the Board may suspend
Employee with full pay and benefits at any time during the Term of this Agreement.
Section 6. Indemnification. The District shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify Employee
against any tort, personnel, civil rights or professional liability claim or demand or other legal
action, whether groundless or otherwise, arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the
performance of Employee's duties as General Manager in accordance with California's Tort Claims
Act (Government Code § 825 et seq.), and shall provide a defense to Employee in accordance with
Government Code sections 995-996.5. The District may decline to defend or indemnify Employee
only as permitted by the Government Code. The District may compromise and settle any such
claim or suit and pay the amount of any resulting settlement or judgment. Provided, however, that
the District's duty to defend and indemnify shall be contingent upon Employee's good faith
cooperation with such defense. In the event the District provides funds for legal criminal defense
pursuant to this Section, Employee shall reimburse the District for such legal criminal defense
funds if Employee is convicted of a crime involving an abuse of office or position, as provided by
Government Code sections 53243-53243.4.
Section 7. Notices. Any notice or communication required hereunder between the District and
Employee must be in writing, and may be given either personally, by facsimile (with original
forwarded by regular U.S. Mail), by registered or certified mail (return receipt requested), or by
Federal Express, UPS or other similar couriers providing overnight delivery. If personally
delivered, a notice or communication shall be deemed to have been given when delivered to the
Party to whom it is addressed. If given by facsimile transmission, a notice or communication shall
be deemed to have been given and received upon actual physical receipt of the entire document by
the receiving Party's facsimile machine. Notices transmitted by facsimile after 5:00 p.m. on a
normal business day or on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday shall be deemed to have been given and
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received on the next normal business day. If given by registered or certified mail, such notice or
communication shall be deemed to have been given and received on the first to occur of (i) actual
receipt by any of the addressees designated below as the party to whom notices are to be sent, or
(ii) five (5) days after a registered or certified letter containing such notice, properly addressed,
with postage prepaid, is deposited in the United States mail. If given by Federal Express or similar
courier, a notice or communication shall be deemed to have been given and received on the date
delivered as shown on a receipt issued by the courier. Any Party hereto may at any time, by giving
ten (10) days written notice to the other Party hereto, designate any other address in substitution
of the address to which such notice or communication shall be given. Such notices or
communications shall be given to the Parties at their addresses set forth below:
If to the District

Del Paso Manor Water District
1817 Maryal Drive, Suite 300
Sacramento CA 95864
Tel: (916) 487-0419
Fax: (916) 487-8534

With a courtesy copy to:

Churchwell White LLP
1414 K Street, Suite 300
Sacramento, California 95814
Attention: Barbara A. Brenner, Esq.
Tel: (916) 468-0950
Fax: (916) 468-0951

If to Employee:

Adam Coyan
c/o the District
With CC to Employee’s mailing address on file with
District

Section 8. Exhibits. All "Exhibits" referred to below or attached to herein are, by this reference,
incorporated into this Agreement:
Exhibit Designation
Exhibit A
Exhibit B

Exhibit Title
Job Description
Employee Benefits

Section 9. General Provisions
Section 9.1 Modification. No alteration, amendment, modification, or termination of this
Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and executed by all Parties to this Agreement.
Section 9.2 Waiver. No covenant, term, or condition, or the breach thereof, shall be deemed
waived, except by written consent of the Party against whom the waiver is claimed, and any waiver
of the breach of any covenant, term, or condition shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any
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preceding or succeeding breach of the same or any other covenant, term, or condition.
Section 9.3 Assignment. No Party to this Agreement shall assign, transfer, or otherwise
dispose of this Agreement in whole or in part to any individual, firm, or corporation without the
prior written consent of the other Party. Subject to the forgoing provisions, this Agreement shall
be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the respective successors and assigns of the Parties
hereto.
Section 9.4 Authority. All Parties to this Agreement warrant and represent that they have
the power and authority to enter into this Agreement and the names, titles, and capacities herein
stated on behalf of any entities, persons, states, or firms represented or purported to be represented
by such entities, persons, states or firms and that all former requirements necessary or required by
the state or federal law in order to enter into the Agreement have been fully complied with. Further,
by entering into this Agreement, neither Party hereto shall have breached the terms or conditions
of any other contract or agreement to which such Party is obligated, which such breach would have
a material effect hereon.
Section 9.5 Drafting and Ambiguities. Each Party acknowledges that it has reviewed this
Agreement with its own legal counsel and, based upon the advice of that counsel, freely entered
into this Agreement. Each Party has participated fully in the review and revision of this Agreement.
Any rule of construction that ambiguities are to be resolved against, the drafting party does not
apply in interpreting this Agreement.
Section 9.6 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the state of California.
Section 9.7 Venue. Venue for all legal proceedings shall be in the Superior Court of
California for Sacramento County.
Section 9.8 Severability. If this Agreement in its entirety is determined by a court to be
invalid or unenforceable, this Agreement shall automatically terminate as of the date of final entry
of judgment. If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined by a court to be invalid and
unenforceable, or if any provision of this Agreement is rendered invalid or unenforceable
according to the terms of any federal or state statute, which becomes effective after the Effective
Date of this Agreement, the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect and shall
be construed to give effect to the intent of this Agreement.
Section 9.9 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously and in several
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but which together shall constitute one
and the same instrument.
Section 9.10 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with its specific references,
attachments and exhibits, constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject
matters hereof, and supersedes any and all prior negotiations, understanding and agreements with
respect hereto, whether oral or written.
Section 9.11 Supersedes Prior Agreements. It is the intention of the Parties hereto that this
{CW094526.3}

General Manager Employment Agreement
Page 8 of 11

Agreement shall supersede any prior agreements, discussions, commitments, or representations
whether, written, electronic or oral, between the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this
Agreement.
Section 9.12 Mandatory and Permissive. "Shall" and "will" and "agrees" are mandatory.
"May" and "can" are permissive.
Section 9.13 Successors and Assigns. All representations, covenants, and warranties
specifically set forth in this Agreement by or on behalf of, or for the benefit of, any or all of the
Parties hereto, shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, such Party, its successors and
assigns.
Section 9.14 Headings. The headings in this Agreement are included for convenience only
and neither affect the construction or interpretation of any section in this Agreement, nor affect
any of the rights or obligations of the Parties to this Agreement.
Section 9.15 Attorney's Fees and Costs. If any action at law or in equity, including action
for declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing
Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees and costs, which may be set by the court in the
same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose, in addition to any other relief to which
such Party may be entitled.
Section 9.16 Necessary Acts and Further Assurances. The Parties shall, at their own cost
and expense, execute and deliver such further documents and instruments and shall take such other
actions as may be reasonably required or appropriate to evidence or carry out the intent and
purposes of this Agreement.
Section 9.17 Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in this Agreement for each
covenant and term of a condition herein.
[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been entered into by and between EMPLOYEE
and the DISTRICT as of the date of the Agreement set forth above.
DISTRICT:
EMPLOYEE:
Del Paso Manor Water District, a County
Water District of the State of California
By:

By:
John Lenahan, President

Date Signed:

Adam Coyan, an individual
Date Signed:

Approved as to Form and Content:
By:
Barbara A. Brenner, District General
Counsel
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EXHIBIT A
Job Description
POLICY NUMBER 1050: Overview of the General Manager’s Role
1050.1 The General Manager is an employee of the District and has an employment agreement
which specifies his/her terms of employment. The General Manager is the administrative head of
the District under the direction of the Board of Directors. He or she shall be responsible for the
efficient administration of all the District’s affairs which are under the General Manager’s
control. The General Manager plans, organizes, directs, coordinates and evaluates all District
operations, programs, and resources in accordance with short and long range goals, policy
statements, and directives from the Board.
1050.2 The General Manager’s Duties are as described in the General Manager’s Employment
Agreement.
The District’s General Manager shall be responsible and accountable for:
a) The implementation of policies established by the Board of Directors for the operation of the
District;
b) The planning, direction, and coordination of the day-to-day operations of the District through
the appropriate department heads or managers including administration, financing, maintenance,
engineering, human resources, and others to effect operational efficiency;
c) The appointment, supervision, discipline, compensation and dismissal of the District’s
employees, consistent with the employment policies established by the Board of Directors;
d) Attend and participate in District Board meetings, prepare and present reports as necessary,
represent the Board before external organizations including other agencies, governmental and
regulatory entities, business and community groups;
e) The supervision of the District’s facilities and services; and
f) The supervision of the District’s finances.
1050.3 The District’s General Manager serves at the pleasure of the Board. The Board will
provide policy direction and instruction to the General Manager on matters within the authority
of the Board during duly-convened board meetings. Members of the Board will deal with matters
within the authority of the General Manager through the General Manager and not through other
District employees. Members of the Board will refrain from making requests directly to District
employees (other than the General Manager) to undertake analyses, perform other work
assignments, or change the priority of work assignments. As members of the public, Directors
may request non-confidential, factual information regarding District operations from District
employees.
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Job Description
Under broad policy and general administrative direction from the Board of Directors (“the
Board”), the General Manager plans, organizes, directs and reviews the overall administrative
activities and operations of the District; provides advice and assists the Board; and represents the
District’s interests at local, regional, state, and federal levels. The position is employed under
contract as the General Manager for the District, which is the highest-level position in the
organization. This position reviews budget requests, makes recommendations to the board on
final expenditure levels, and is responsible for employer-employee relations.

Broad Duties
The broad duties of the General Manager are set forth in the California Water Code as follows:
Section 30580

The General Manager shall:
(a) Have full charge and control of the maintenance, operation, and construction of the water
works
or water-works system of the District.
(b) Have full power and authority to employ and discharge all employees at pleasure.
(c) Prescribe the duties of employees.
(d) Fix and alter the compensation of employees subject to approval by the Board.

Section 30581
The General Manager shall also:
(a) Perform other duties imposed by the Board.
(b) Report to the Board in accordance with the rules and regulations as it adopts.

Essential Duties and Responsibilities
The following duties are typical for this position. Depending upon the assignment, the position
may not perform all of the listed duties and/or may be required to perform additional or different
duties from those set forth below to address business needs and changing business practices. The
Board retains the right to add, remove, or change duties at any time. This position is full time and
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requires a minimum of forty (40) hours of work per week performing District duties. Attendance
at all District board and committee meetings is required.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Serve as the Chief Administrative Officer for the District.
Perform as the District Incident Manager when Emergency Response Plan is
implemented.
Serve as the District’s spokesperson to the media, general public, and ratepayers after
consultation with the Board of Directors and general counsel.
Effectively represent the District and its interests with federal, state and local agencies
and
elected officials, other special districts, professional groups, and the public.
Responsible for the District’s Conservation Program, including performing audits as
necessary.
Direct projects, programs, grants, and contracts.
Prepare leases and agreements with other agencies
Responsible for the safety and security of all District owned and leased properties
including all equipment.
Comply with District, local, state and federal regulations, work with consultants on
regulatory and compliance requirements; provide advice/consultation regarding
legislation to the District and Board.

Personnel
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Budget and approve the appointment of personnel.
Assume responsibility for District personnel matters, including employment procedures,
grievances, classification, compensation, and employer-employee relations.
Provide leadership and guidance to all District employees.
Provide coverage for the job duties of employees when they are on vacation or sick leave.
Mentor, supervise, train, discipline, and evaluate the performance of direct reports.
Maintain awareness of operation practices and recommend changes which increase the
efficiency and economy of District operations.
Confer with outside legal counsel on legal and regulatory issues affecting the District.
Establish and maintain cooperative working relationships with co-workers, the Board,
outside
agencies, and the public.
Manage in-house and outsourced functions: Payroll, Information Technology,
Engineering, and others, as needed.
Prepare payroll data, reports, and review timecards.

Board of Directors
•

Attend District Board and committee meetings; present reports and agenda items
regarding
District programs.
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•
•
•
•
•
•

Represent the District as Secretary of the Board, (if so appointed), and serve on
committees as appointed.
Direct the development, implementation and enforcement of District goals, objectives,
policies, regulations, and procedures; approve new or modified programs, systems, and
administrative/personnel policies and procedures.
Coordinate District activities with outside agencies and organizations.
Provide consultation, advice, and recommendations for the Board’s consideration and
adoption; provide staff assistance to the Board.
Direct and oversee the development of Board agendas.
Research, prepare, and present technical and administrative reports and studies to the
Board and a variety of committees and the public; prepare written correspondence.

Financial Management
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Maintain a documented system of accounting and operations policies and Standard
Operating Procedures.
Design and implement an organizational structure adequate for achieving the District’s
goals and objectives
Direct and oversee the development, presentation, and administration of the District
budget;
make recommendations to the Board on final expenditure levels.
Prepare and review District contracts, leases, and agreements with vendors and other
agencies, along with other legal and financial documents.
Countersign all contracts, leases, and agreements as Secretary of the Board, (if so
appointed), after review of District counsel, Board approval, and signature of the Board
President.
Prepare monthly/quarterly reports to government agencies as required.
Issue timely and complete financial statements, reports, and budgets.
Responsible for annual audit and compliance duties.

Qualifications
Knowledge of:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Public water system operations.
Principles, methods, techniques, and objectives of public administration.
Planning, organizing, directing, and supervising the operations of a Special District.
Policies, procedures, rules, regulations, and methods of enforcement.
Principles and practices of leadership, motivation, team building, and conflict resolution.
Federal, state, county, and local regulatory compliance.
Organizational and management practices as applied to the analysis and evaluation of
programs, policies, and operational needs.
Principles and practices of safety and risk management.
Project management, budget principles, and fiscal controls.
Cost estimating, contract administration, research, and evaluation methods.
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•

Public personnel administration, labor relations, and employer-employee relations.

Ability to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Plan, organize, coordinate, and direct District’s operations to achieve efficiency and meet
program goals.
Exercise leadership, authority, and supervision tactfully and effectively.
Exercise good judgment.
Administer a District budget and fiscal control process.
Evaluate and make recommendations on improvements to existing District operations,
programs, and services.
Collect, organize, and analyze data on variety of topics.
Analyze situations and make sound recommendations in support of District goals.
Communicate effectively both orally and in writing with the Board of Directors, coworkers, and the public in one-to-one and group settings.
Understand, interpret, and apply laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances relating to
District activities.
Provide advice and consultation to the Board of Directors on the development of
ordinances, regulations, programs, and policies.
Effectively represent the District with the public, community groups, contractors, and
other organizations.
Establish and maintain cooperative working relationships.
Operate a variety of standard office equipment, telephone, personal computer, and
software applications for word processing, graphic presentations, spreadsheets, and other
job-related software.

Education, Experience and Certification
Required:
•
•
•
•

A Bachelor’s Degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in
Business, Public Administration, Engineering or a closely related field.
Five years of broad and extensive experience in a management position responsible for
the formulation and implementation of programs, budgets and administrative operations.
Three years of increasingly responsible management or supervisory experience related to
business, public administration or engineering programs and functions.
Three years of managerial experience in a public agency.

NOTE: This position requires passing a background check and drug test prior to start date.

Desirable: Any equivalent combination of education and experience which provides the
knowledge and abilities necessary to perform the work – for example:
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•
•
•
•

Master’s Degree (MBA/MPA) from an accredited college or university in Business,
Public
Administration, Engineering or a closely-related field.
Four or more years of broad and extensive experience in a management position
responsible for the formulation and implementation of programs, budgets and
administrative operations.
Four or more years of increasingly responsible management or supervisory experience
related to business, public administration or engineering programs and functions.
Three or more years of managerial experience in a water agency highly desirable.

Licenses:
•
•
•

Possess a valid State of California Class C driver’s license.
Proof of good driving record as evidenced by absence of multiple or serious traffic
violations or accidents for at least two years prior to application.
Water Treatment and/or Distribution Operator License (State of California) Level II must
be obtained within 2 years after date of hire.

License and Certification Maintenance: Employee is responsible to complete the designated
number of contact hours (i.e.: continuing education and/or training requirements) and
licensing requirements to maintain all required licenses and certifications as a condition of
continued employment.
NOTE: The specific statements shown in each section of this job description are not intended to
be all inclusive.
They represent typical elements and criteria that are performed by most incumbents, but other
related duties may be performed. Not all duties listed are necessarily performed by each
individual.
Physical Requirements
The conditions herein are representative of those that must be met by an employee to
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential job functions.
•
•
•
•
•

Travel occasionally by airplane conducting District business.
Travel regularly by vehicle for District-related duties and activities.
Regularly work in an office environment: Work at a desk/table for an extended period of
time; sit and stand for an extended period of time.
Ability to bend (neck and waist), squat, climb, crouch, stoop, kneel, twist, grasp, fine
manipulation, push, pull, reach (above and below shoulder level), balance, stand, walk.
Ability to reach, lift, carry and move objects up to 25 pounds (e.g. storage boxes, large
binders, books, outreach materials and supplies, tables, chairs, popup shade structures,
etc.).
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•

Repetitive use of hands.

Environmental and Working Conditions
The environmental and working conditions herein are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
•
•
•
•
•

•

Regularly work in ambient room temperatures, lighting and traditional office equipment
as found in a typical office environment.
Work outside of business hours (i.e. nights, weekends, holidays, etc.) as required to meet
the needs of the District.
The performance of this position may occasionally require exposure to job site,
distribution and production areas where:
Certain areas may require the use of personal protective equipment such as hard hats,
safety glasses, and hearing protection.
May be both indoors and outdoors in all weather conditions with exposure to dust, dirt,
water, and significant temperature changes between cold and heat; on various types of
terrain and footing which may be slippery or uneven; around moving objects or vehicles;
in small/tight spaces.
May be around machinery with moving parts or stationary equipment; near hazardous
chemicals; exposed to fumes/smoke/gases.
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EXHIBIT B
Employee Benefits

CalPERS Retirement (Classic 2%@55; PEPRA 2%@62).
Deferred Compensation 457 Plan.
Fully paid Health Insurance for employee and dependents.
Fully paid Dental, Vision & EAP for employee and dependents.
Vacation – Accrue between 10 to 21 days per year based on years of service.
Accrued from the 1st day of employment as follows:
•
•
•
•

10 days per year – For the first 3 years
15 days per year – For the 4th through 10th year
18 days per year – For the 11th through 15th year
21 days per year – Thereafter

Employees hired after June 1, 2019 may not accrue more than 150% of the annual
vacation accrual rate applicable to them. Upon reaching the maximum annual accrual,
vacation shall cease to accrue until the accrued vacation days are reduced below the
maximum by usage of vacation leave. By way of example, an employee during his/her
first three years of employment may not accrue more than 15 days of vacation leave.
Sick Leave - 12 days per year
Holidays - 12 days per year: New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, Presidents Day,
Cesar Chavez Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veteran’s Day, Thanksgiving
and the day after, Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, and one (1) personal floating day subject to
approval.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors
Del Paso Manor Water District
Sacramento, California
Report on Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Del Paso Manor Water District (the District),
which comprises the statement of net position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statement of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
Basis for Qualified Opinion
As discussed in Note A to the financial statements, the District has not recorded developer-constructed
infrastructure and GASB Statement No. 34 requires all infrastructure capital assets be recorded, which
1
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Del Paso Manor Water District

would increase the assets, net assets and expense of the District. The amount by which this departure
would affect the assets, net assets and expense, of the District is not reasonably determinable.
Qualified Opinion
In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the preceding paragraph, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the District, as
of June 30, 2019, and the changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Emphasis of Matters
As discussed in Note F to the financial statements, the District’s actuary applied Section 3.7.7(c)4 of
Actuarial Standard of Practice No. 6, as revised, and determined age adjusted health insurance premiums
are not necessary in the calculation of the District’s net other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability,
and therefore, the Implicit Rate Subsidy is not applicable in calculating the total projection of benefits
payments. Had the actuary included age adjusted health insurance premiums in the calculation of the net
OPEB liability, the OPEB liability may have been significantly larger in the amount. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.
Other Matters
The financial statements of the District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 were audited by other
auditors whose report dated October 25, 2018 expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 3 to 6 and other required supplementary information on pages 32 to 34
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The supplemental information listed in the table of
contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The supplemental information section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on it.

June 2, 2020
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Del Paso Manor Water District
Required Supplementary Information
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019
This section of the Del Paso Manor Water District annual financial report presents an analysis of the
District's financial performance during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. This information is presented
in conjunction with the audited basic financial statements, which follow this section.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018 /19


At the end of the current year, total net position (total assets less total liabilities) of the District
was a positive $2.1 million.



During the year, the District’s net position increased by approximately $500,000.



The District’s capital asset balance before depreciation was $7.2 million at the end of the year.



The District has recognized a liability in the amount of $688 thousand for a net pension obligation
due to Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB) 68. The liability decreased
approximately $16 thousand from the prior year. See Note E of the basic financial statements.



The District has recognized a liability in the amount of $88 thousand for post-employment
benefits. The liability decreased approximately $4 thousand from the prior year. See Note F of the
basic financial statements.



The District's installment loan balance was reduced from $4.8 million at June 30, 2018 to $4.7
million at June 30, 2019 with a $105,000 principal payment.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This annual report consists of the following three parts: Management's Discussion and Analysis, Basic
Financial Statements, and Other Required Supplementary Information. The financial statements also
include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and provide more detailed
data.
REQUIRED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Financial Statements of the District report information utilizing the full accrual basis of accounting.
The Financial Statements conform to accounting principles which are generally accepted in the United
States of America. The Statements of Net Position include information on the District's assets and
liabilities and provide information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and
the obligations to creditors (liabilities). The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position identify the District's revenues and expenses for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2019 and 2018.
These statements provide information on the District's operations over the past two fiscal years, and can
be used to determine whether the District has recovered all if it's actual and projected costs through user
fees and other charges. The third component of the financial statements is the Statement of Cash Flows.
These statements provide information on the District's cash receipts, cash payments and changes in cash
resulting from operating, investments and financing activities. From the Statements of Cash Flows, the
reader can obtain comparative information on the sources and uses of cash and the changes in the cash
and cash equivalent balances.
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Del Paso Manor Water District
Required Supplementary Information
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT
The Statements of Net Position and the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
provide an indication of the District's financial condition and also indicate if the financial condition of the
District has improved during the last fiscal year. The District's Net Position reflects the difference
between assets and liabilities.
A summary of the District's Statement of Net Position and Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Net Position are presented below:
Condensed Statements of Net Position as of June
30, 2019 and 2018
Increase/(Decrease)
from 2018

2019

2018

2017

Current and other assets
Capital assets, net
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted net position

$ 2,098,012
5,178,908
7,276,920
553,939
296,140
5,384,724
5,680,864
82,116
456,908
1,610,971

$ 1,462,585
5,265,946
6,728,531
612,867
162,445
5,569,214
5,731,659
53,163
438,946
1,117,630

$

635,427
(87,038)
548,389
(58,928)
133,695
(184,490)
(50,795)
28,953
17,962
493,341

$ 2,057,440
5,469,097
7,526,537
164,057
172,345
5,695,827
5,868,172
52,729
414,097
1,355,596

Total net position

$ 2,067,879

$ 1,556,576

$

511,303

$ 1,769,693

Condensed Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
2019

2018

Operating revenues
Non-operating revenues
Total revenues
Depreciation expense
Operating expenses
Total expenses
Non-operating expenses
Changes in net position
Beginning net position restated in 2017

$ 2,090,168
21,356
2,111,524
212,081
1,101,500
1,313,581
(286,640)
511,303

$ 1,403,722
9,693
1,413,415
214,429
1,082,468
1,296,897
(263,038)
(146,520)

1,556,576

1,703,096

Ending net position

$ 2,067,879

$ 1,556,576
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Increase/(Decrease)
from 2018
$

$

2017

686,446
11,663
698,109
(2,348)
19,032
16,684
(23,602)
657,823

$ 1,389,987
5,873
1,395,860
219,899
996,396
1,216,295
(266,713)
(87,148)

(146,520)

1,856,841

511,303

$ 1,769,693

Del Paso Manor Water District
Required Supplementary Information
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019
CURRENT AND OTHER ASSETS
As of June 30, 2019, the District's current and other assets totaled $2.1 million which was an increase of
$635,000 over the June 30, 2018 balances of approximately $1.5 million. Much of the increase in current
assets was a result of increases in cash and investments of $546,000 and accounts receivable of $95,000.
These increases were the result of higher water sales during fiscal 2019 and a $650,000 improvement in
net position.
CAPITAL ASSETS
As of June 30, 2019, the District's investments in capital assets, including factoring accumulated
depreciation, totaled $5.2 million which was a decrease of $87,000 over the capital asset balance at June
30, 2018 of $5.3 million.
During the year, the District invested approximately $21,000 into well 7 in order to extend its life, and
almost an additional $100,000 in capitalized costs to the pumping and distribution system. Depreciation
expense for the fiscal years 2019 and 2018 was $212,081 and $214,429 respectively.
CURRENT LIABILITIES
As of June 30, 2019 the District's current liabilities totaled approximately $300,000 which was an
increase of $134,000 over the June 30, 2018 balances. Much of the increase in current liabilities was the
result of higher accounts payable balances, and higher accrued payroll balances compared to 2018, which
were settled shortly after year end.
LONG - TERM DEBT
As of June 30, 2019, the District had $4,722,000 in outstanding business-type debt as reported in the
statement of net position and in the notes to the financial statements. The District's debt decreased by a
principal payment of $105,000 made during the fiscal year.
OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Water sales and other revenues increased from $1.4 million in 2018 to approximately $2.1 million in
2019. As discussed below, at the end of 2018, the District approved a rate increase which was in affect
during all of fiscal 2019. Operating expenses were relatively consistent from year to year at
approximately $1.1 million in 2018 and 2019.
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET
The District approved a rate increase in May 2018 with an effective date of June 16, 2018 for monthly
billed accounts, and July 1, 2018 for bi-monthly billed accounts. This rate increase will cover the
District's increased costs associated with daily operation and maintenance of the District along with
rebuilding the reserves. The Board set a reserve fund goal of six months of operations and maintenance
expenses with the goal of meeting this target in four to five years. Del Paso Manor Water District's rates
continue to remain competitive with other water purveyors in the region.
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June 30, 2019
The aging infrastructure of the District still needs to be addressed. The Board plans on updating the 2009
Master Plan in the next fiscal year in an effort to redefine the issues and develop a plan for replacement of
the aging facilities. Once this update is completed they will look at the economics and develop a plan to
finance the next phases of projects.
The District is currently considering refinancing the existing installment loan of $4,722,000. This loan
has an interest rate of 5.15% and the District believes it can obtain a lower interest rate which would save
the District approximately $400,000 in future interest expense. If completed, the refinance is expected to
close towards the end of fiscal 2020 or the beginning of fiscal 2021.
In addition, the District is staying engaged with legislative and regulatory requirements that may require
fees and/or costs to the District, thus potentially affecting consumer rates. To meet California's
Sustainability Groundwater Management Act requirements, the District participates in the Sacramento
Groundwater Authority which is one of the recognized Groundwater Sustainability Agencies in the North
American Sub-basin.
ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The financial report is designed to provide the District's customers and other interested parties with an
overview of the District's financial operations and financial condition. Should the reader have questions
regarding the information included in this report or to request additional financial information, please
contact the Del Paso Manor Water District's General Manager at 1817 Maryal Drive, Suite 300,
Sacramento, CA 95864.
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DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2019 and 2018
2019

2018

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Current services
Accrued interest receivable
Prepaid expenses

$

694,273
1,157,911

$

662,554
643,318

Total Current Assets

225,462
4,837
15,529
2,098,012

130,475
3,053
23,185
1,462,585

Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Net

67,170
5,111,738
5,178,908

46,520
5,219,426
5,265,946

TOTAL ASSETS

7,276,920

6,728,531

332,924
26,313
194,702

359,234
25,000
228,633

553,939

612,867

TOTAL ASSETS AND
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS $ 7,830,859

$ 7,341,398

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on refunding
Other postemployment benefits (OPEB)
Pensions
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

Continued
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DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION (Continued)
June 30, 2019 and 2018
2019

2018

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Unearned revenue
Current portion of noncurrent liabilities

$

Total Current Liabilities

120,173
48,378
1,055
126,534
296,140

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

4,598,000
10,137
688,430
88,157
5,384,724

4,722,000
51,257
704,360
91,597
5,569,214

TOTAL LIABILITIES

5,680,864

5,731,659

3,374
78,742

53,163

82,116

53,163

456,908
1,610,971

438,946
1,117,630

2,067,879

1,556,576

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS AND NET POSITION $ 7,830,859

$ 7,341,398

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Notes payable, net of current portion
Compensated absences
Net pension obligation
Net OPEB obligation

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Other post-employment benefits (OPEB)
Pensions
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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19,215
28,679
114,551
162,445

DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019
OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales
Other Water Sales

$ 1,951,136
139,032
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
2,090,168

2018
$ 1,396,247
7,475
1,403,722

OPERATING EXPENSES
General and administrative
Transmission and distribution
Pumping
Treatment
Water purchases
Depreciation
Pension expense adjustment
Other post-employment benefits (OPEB)
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

5,738
212,081
43,582
24,016
1,313,581

657,475
241,341
96,279
4,488
5,535
214,429
52,350
25,000
1,296,897

NET INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

776,587

106,825

NON-OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Investment income earned
Reimbursements
Interest expense
TOTAL NON-OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net position, beginning of year, as previously reported

651,676
265,398
111,090

16,410
4,946
(286,640)
(265,284)

9,693
(263,038)
(253,345)

511,303

(146,520)

1,556,576

1,703,096

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $ 2,067,879

$ 1,556,576

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019

2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers
$ 1,967,557 $ 1,409,350
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
(664,734)
(448,003)
Cash payments to employees for services
(276,159)
(573,340)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1,026,664
388,007
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Reimbursements received
NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt
Restricted cash used for bond advance refunding
NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

4,946
4,946

(125,043)
(260,330)

(385,373)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income received
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

14,626
14,626

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

660,863

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

(11,278)
(105,000)
(264,875)
(613,753)
(994,906)

8,102
8,102

(598,797)

1,305,872

1,904,669

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 1,966,735

$ 1,305,872

Continued
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DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019
Cash and cash equivalents - financial statement classification
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

$

694,273
1,157,911

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 1,852,184
RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME FROM OPERATIONS TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) Decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expense
Deferred outflows
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Unearned revenue
Customer deposits
Compensated absences
Net pension obligation
Net OPEB obligation
Deferred inflows

$

776,587

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$

$

106,825

214,429

(94,987)
7,656
32,618
100,958
48,378
(27,624)

(851)
(1,502)
2,429

6,479
7,848

(38,586)
(15,930)
(3,440)
28,953

26,310

662,554
643,318

$ 1,305,872

212,081

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 1,026,664
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Amortization of deferred amortization on refunding
$

2018

52,350

$

388,007

DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019 and 2018
NOTE A – REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The basic financial statements of the Del Paso Manor Water District (District) have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as applied to government units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the District’s
accounting policies are described below.
Reporting Entity: The District was established in 1956 as a water district located in the central portion of
Sacramento County northeast of the City of Sacramento and north of the lower American River. The
District serves a population of approximately 1,800. The District is predominately residential in
character, with interspersed commercial areas. The District is governed by a Board of Directors
consisting of five directors elected by residents of the District. The accompanying basic financial
statements present the District.
Basis of Presentation – Fund Accounting: The District’s resources are allocated to and accounted for in
these basic financial statements as an enterprise fund type of the proprietary fund group. The enterprise
fund is used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges, or where the governing body has decided that periodic
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other policies. Net position for the
enterprise fund represents the amount available for future operations.
Basis of Accounting: The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by
its measurement focus. The enterprise fund type is accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the
operation of this fund are included on the balance sheet. Net position is segregated into amounts invested
in capital assets, net of related debt, amounts restricted and amounts unrestricted. Enterprise fund type
operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total position.
The District uses the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Earned but unbilled water services are
accrued as revenue.
Water lines are constructed by private developers and then dedicated to the District, which is then
responsible for their future maintenance. These lines are not being recorded as capital contributions.
Operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that result from the ongoing
principal operations of the District. Operating revenues consist primarily of charges for services. Nonoperating revenues and expense consist of those revenues and expenses that are related to financing and
investing types of activities and result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.
When both unrestricted and restricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use
unrestricted resources first, then restricted resources as they are needed.
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DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
June 30, 2019 and 2018
NOTE A – REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources: In addition to assets and liabilities, the statement of net
position reports separate sections for deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred
outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position by the government that is applicable to a
future reporting period. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that is
applicable to a future reporting period. These amounts will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense) or an inflow of resources (revenue) until the earning process is complete. Deferred outflows
and inflows of resources represent amounts deferred related to the District’s pension and OPEB plan as
described in Notes E and F, and for deferred amounts related to bond refunding.
Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions
from the Plans fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB): For purposes of measuring the net OPEB
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the OPEB plan and additions to/deductions from
the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported by
the plan. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Cash and Cash Equivalents: For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly
liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash
and cash equivalents held include bank deposits and restricted and unrestricted investments in money
market mutual funds and LAIF.
Restricted Assets: Certain proceeds of the District’s long-term debt are classified as restricted
investments on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable debt covenants. The “reserve”
account is used to report resources set aside to make up for potential future deficiencies in the Certificates
of Participation debt service. The District also had unspent facility fees classified as restricted cash and
cash equivalents.
Estimated Insurance Liabilities: The District maintains a commercial package policy that provides limits
of liability of $5,000,000 per occurrence, annually.
Capital Assets: Capital assets are recorded at historical cost. The District has not quantified and recorded
the value of developer-constructed infrastructure that has been deeded to the District. Accordingly,
amounts for these assets are not reflected in these financial statements. The amount by which the capital
assets may be misstated cannot be determined. Self-constructed assets are recorded based on the amount
of direct labor and materials charged to the asset construction. Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
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DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
June 30, 2019 and 2018
NOTE A – REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Description

Estimated Life

Infrastructure (Wells)
Reservoir and tanks
Pumping equipment
Hydrants
Transmission and Distribution
Meters
Building, structures and improvements
Office equipment
Field equipment and vehicles

5-45 years
40 years
5-45 years
45 years
30-45 years
10 years
15-35 years
5-7 years
5-20 years

Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations when incurred. Costs of assets sold or retired (and the
related amounts of accumulated depreciation) are eliminated from the balance sheet in the year of sale or
retirement, and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in operations.
Depreciation expense aggregated $212,081 and $214,429 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.
Deferred Amount from Refunding Debt: The difference between the reacquisition price of refunded debt
and the net carrying amount of the previously outstanding debt is deferred and reported as a deferred
outflow on the balance sheet. These amounts are amortized over the term of the new debt.
Compensated Absences: The District’s policy allows employees to accumulate earned but unused
vacation which will be paid to employees upon separation from the District’s service. The cost of
vacation is recognized in the period earned.
Reclassifications: Certain amounts in 2018 have been reclassified to conform to the 2019 financial
statement presentation. The reclassification had no effect on total net assets or change in net assets.
New Pronouncements: In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This
Statement establishes criteria for identifying and disclosing fiduciary activities of state and local
governments. The focus of the criteria is on whether a government is controlling the assets of the
fiduciary activity and the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. An activity meeting the
criteria should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements of the government. Four
fiduciary funds should be reported under this statement: Pension and other employee benefit trust funds,
investment trust funds, private-purpose trust funds, and custodial funds. This Statement is effective for
periods beginning after December 15, 2018.
In April 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures related to Debt, including Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements. This Statement improves the information that is disclosed in the
notes to government financial statements and clarifies which liabilities governments should include when
disclosing information related to debt. This Statement requires that additional essential information
related to debt be disclosed in notes to the financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets
pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant events of
default with finance-related consequences and significant subjective acceleration clauses. For notes to the
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DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
June 30, 2019 and 2018
NOTE A – REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
financial statement there is a requirement that existing and additional information be provided for direct
borrowings and direct placements of debt separately from other debt. The requirements of this Statement
were implemented for the year ended June 30, 2019.
In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End
of a Construction Period. This Statement enhances disclosures about capital assets and the cost of
borrowing for a reporting period and simplifies the accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of
a construction period. Interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period will be recognized as
an expense rather than being recorded as part of the cost of capital assets in a business-type activity or
enterprise fund and interest incurred by a fund using the current financial resources measurement focus
before the end of a construction period should be recognized as an expenditure on a basis consistent with
governmental fund accounting principles. The requirements of this Statement are effective for the
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.
The District is currently analyzing the impact of the required implementation of these new statements.
NOTE B – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as
follows:
2019

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

$

Total cash and cash equivalents

2018

694,273
1,157,911

$

662,554
643,318

$ 1,852,184

$

1,305,872

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30 consisted of the following:
2019

Cash on hand
Deposits with financial institutions

$
Total cash

300
693,859
694,159

Restricted investments
Investments in Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
Total investments

114
1,157,911
1,158,025

Total cash and cash equivalents

$ 1,852,184

2018

$

300
662,175
662,475
79
643,318
643,397

$

1,305,872

Investment policy: California statutes authorize districts to invest idle or surplus funds in a variety of
credit instruments as provided for in the California Government Code, Section 53600, Chapter 4 Financial Affairs. The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by
the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive) that address
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June 30, 2019 and 2018
NOTE B – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address investments of
debt proceeds held by the bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the
District, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District’s investment
policy.
During the year ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District’s permissible investments included the
following instruments:
Authorized
Investment Type
Local Agency Bonds
U.S. Treasury Obligations
State Obligations
California Local Agency Obligations
U.S. Agency Securities
Bankers Acceptances
Commercial Paper
Negotiable Certificates of Deposits
Repurchase Agreements
Reverse Repurchase Agreements
Medium Term Corporate Notes
Mutual Funds
Money Market Mutual Funds
LAIF
Collateralized Bank Deposits
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities
California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
County Pooled Investments
Time Deposits

Maximum
Maturity

Maximum
Percentage
of Portfolio*

Maximum
Investment
in One Issuer

5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
180 days
270 days
5 years
1 year
92 days
5 years
N/A
N/A
N/A
5 years
5 years
N/A
N/A
5 years

None
None
None
None
None
40%
25%
30%
None
20%
30%
20%
20%
$4 million
None
20%
None
None
None

None
None
None
None
None
30%
10%
None
None
None
None
None
10%
None
None
None
None
None
None

*Excluding amounts held by the bond trustee that are not subject to California Government Code
restrictions.
Authorized
Investment Type
Local Agency Bonds
U.S. Treasury Obligations
U.S. Agency Securities
Bankers Acceptances
Commercial Paper
Certificates of Deposits
Investment Agreements
Repurchase Agreements
Money Market Mutual Funds
LAIF
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Maximum
Maturity

Maximum
Percentage
of Portfolio

Maximum
Investment
in One Issuer

None
None
None
1 year
None
None
None
None
N/A
N/A

None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None

None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None

DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
June 30, 2019 and 2018
NOTE B – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity
of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses
arising from rising interest rates, the District generally manages its interest rate risk by investing in the
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which provides the necessary cash flow and liquidity needed for
operations.
Credit Risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation
to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization. LAIF does not have a rating provided by a nationally recognized statistical
rating agency.
Concentration of Credit Risk: The investment policy of the District limits the amount that can be invested
in any one issuer to the amount stipulated by the California Government Code. There are no investments
in any one issuer (other than external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total District
investments.
Custodial credit risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a
depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for
investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities
that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the District’s
investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial
credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code
requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging
securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived
by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at
least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial
institutions to secure public agency deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of
150% of the secured public deposits.
At June 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits were $693,859 and the balances in
financial institutions were $694,187 and of this amount $444,187 was not insured by federal depository
insurance. At June 30, 2018, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits were $662,175 and the
balances in financial institutions were $706,758 and of this amount $456,758 was not insured by federal
depository insurance.
Investment in LAIF: The District is a participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is
regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State
of California. The District reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF,
which is the same as the value of the pool share. The balance is available for withdrawal on demand, and
is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.
Included in LAIF’s investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed
securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state funds, United States Treasury Notes and
Bills, and floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, and
corporations. The total fair value amount invested by all public agencies in LAIF is $106,046,486,872
managed by the State Treasurer. The Local Investment Advisory Board (the Board) has oversight
responsibility for LAIF. The Board consists of five members as designated by the State Statute. At June
30, 2019, these investments matured in an average of 173 days.
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June 30, 2019 and 2018
NOTE C – CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 is as follows:
Balance
July 1, 2018
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

$

Capital assets being depreciated:
Source of supply
Pumping plant
Transmission and distribution
General plant and administration
Less accumulated depreciation:
Source of supply
Pumping plant
Transmission and distribution
General plant and administration
Net capital assets being depreciated
Net capital assets

Additions

Capital assets being depreciated:
Source of supply
Pumping plant
Transmission and distribution
General plant and administration
Less accumulated depreciation:
Source of supply
Pumping plant
Transmission and distribution
General plant and administration
Net capital assets being depreciated
Net capital assets

Balance
June 30, 2019

$ 20,650
20,650

8,505
58,665
67,170

2,459,603
1,036,177
2,312,578
1,276,836
7,085,194

15,540
80,625
8,228
104,393

2,459,603
1,051,717
2,393,203
1,281,697
7,186,220

(407,060)
(194,200)
(833,171)
(431,337)
(1,865,768)
5,219,426

(54,533)
(31,611)
(60,545)
(65,392)
(212,081)
(107,688)

$ 5,265,946

$

Transfers

8,505
38,015
46,520

$

8,505
31,171
39,676

Additions

$ 5,469,097

(3,367)
(3,367)

(461,593)
(225,811)
(893,716)
(493,362)
(2,074,482)
5,111,738

3,367
3,367
-

$

Deletions

-

Transfers

$

6,844
6,844

8,505
38,015
46,520

4,434
4,434

2,459,603
1,036,177
2,312,578
1,276,836
7,085,194

(54,530)
(32,998)
(60,019)
(66,882)
(214,429)
(209,995)
$ (203,151)
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5,178,908

Balance
June 30, 2018

$
$

2,459,603
1,036,177
2,312,578
1,272,402
7,080,760
(352,530)
(161,202)
(773,152)
(364,455)
(1,651,339)
5,429,421

$

$ (87,038) $

Balance
July 1, 2017
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Deletions

(407,060)
(194,200)
(833,171)
(431,337)
(1,865,768)
5,219,426
$

-

$

-

$ 5,265,946
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NOTE D – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
The activity of the District’s long-term liabilities during the year ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was as
follows:
Balance
July 1, 2018
Installment loan
Compensated absences
Net pension obligation
Net OPEB obligation

$

$

4,827,000
60,808
704,360
91,597
5,683,765

Additions
$

11,420

$

11,420

Balance
July 1, 2017
Certificates of Participation
Installment loan
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Net OPEB obligation

$

$

5,695,827

(105,000)
(59,557)
(15,930)
(3,440)

$

4,722,000
12,671
688,430
88,157

$

(183,927)

$

5,511,258

(Reductions)
$

$ 4,827,000
26,950
116,493
91,597
$

5,062,040

Balance
June 30, 2019

$

Additions

5,055,000
52,960
587,867

(Reductions)

$ 124,000
2,534

$

126,534

Balance
June 30, 2018

Due Within
One Year

$ 4,827,000
60,808
704,360
91,597

$ 105,000
9,551

(5,055,000)
(19,102)

$

Due Within
One Year

(5,074,102)

$

5,683,765

$

114,551

The District’s long-term liabilities consist of the following:
2010 Revenue Certificates of Participation: In August 2010, the District issued the 2010 Revenue
Certificates of Participation (2010 COPs) in the amount of $5,615,000. The 2010 COPs were issued to
fund the replacement of two wells, installment of new distribution mains, and the upgrade of electrical
systems at existing sites. These certificates of participation were advance refunded, and the proceeds of
the advance refunding installment loan were placed in escrow and will be used to call the refunded
certificates of participation with final payment on July 1, 2020. As of June 30, 2018, the certificates of
participation were refunded with the 2018 installment loan.
2018 Advance Refunding: In June 2018, the District issued an installment loan in the amount of
$4,827,000 to advance refund the previously outstanding 2010 COPs. The 2018 Installment Loan is
payable in semiannual installments including interest of 5.150% and matures in July 2040. Interest
payments range from $9,244 to $136,034 semi-annually. Principal payments range from $105,000 to
$359,000 annually.
The refunding resulted in deferred amount on refunding of $359,234, which is being amortized over the
remaining life of the refunded debt. Amortization expense totaled $26,310 for the year ended June 30,
2019, and is included in interest expense. The deferred amount on refunding was $332,924 and $359,234
at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
The 2018 Installment Loan is obligations of the CDSA Finance Corporation (Corporation) payable solely
from payments received from the District pursuant to an Installment Purchase Contract between the
Corporation and the District. The obligation of the District to make installment payments is payable
solely from net revenues of the District’s water system and certain funds and accounts created under the
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Installment Purchase Contract. The Installment Purchase Contract requires the District to agree to fix,
prescribe, and collect rates and charges for its water service which will be at least sufficient to yield each
fiscal year net revenues equal to 120% of the annual debt service in such fiscal year. Should the District
default on payments or any covenants of the agreement, all moneys and investments in the funds and
accounts held under the agreement and all gross revenues thereafter received shall be applied to principal
and accrued interest.
The following is a schedule of maturities for the long-term debt outstanding:

Principal
For the Year Ended June 30:
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025-2029
2030-2034
2035-2039
2040-2041

Interest

$

124,000
132,000
143,000
149,000
159,000
920,000
1,189,000
1,547,000
359,000

$

243,183
236,797
229,999
222,635
214,961
943,789
681,036
339,230
18,489

$

4,722,000

$

3,130,119

Pledged Revenue: The District pledged future water system revenues, net of specified expenses, to repay
the 2018 Installment Loan in the original amount of $4,827,000. Proceeds of the Installment Loan were
used to refund the previously outstanding 2010 Revenue Certificates of Participation. The Installment
Loan is payable solely from water customer net revenues and are payable through July 1, 2040. Total
principal and interest remaining to be paid on the Installment Loan was $7,852,119 and $8,217,448 at
June 30, 2019 and 2018. Total principal and interest paid was $365,330 and the total water net revenues
were $461,337 for the year ended June 30, 2019. There were no payments made on principal and interest
for the year ended June 30, 2018. At June 30, 2019, the District’s net revenues were 126% of debt service
payments.
NOTE E – PENSION PLANS
Plan Descriptions: All qualified employees are eligible to participate in the District’s cost-sharing
multiple employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS). CalPERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for
participating public employers within the State of California. The District participates in the
Miscellaneous and PEPRA Miscellaneous rate plans.
Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and Board resolution. CalPERS issues
publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions,
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website at
www.calpers.ca.gov.
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Benefits Provided: CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with
five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 (52 for PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan) with
statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of
service. The death benefit is the following: the 1957 Survivor Benefit or the Optional Settlement 2W
Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments are applied as specified by the Public Employees’
Retirement Law.
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2019 and 2018 are summarized as follows:
Classic
Miscellaneous
Plan
(Prior to
January 1, 2013)

Hire date
Benefit formula (at full retirement)
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates - 2017/18
Required employer contribution rates - 2017/18
Required employee contribution rates - 2018/19
Required employer contribution rates - 2018/19

2.0% @ 55
5 years service
monthly for life
50 - 63
1.5% to 2%
7.00%
8.92%
7.00%
9.409%

PEPRA
Miscellaneous
Plan
(On or after
January 1, 2013)
2.0% @ 62
5 years service
monthly for life
52 - 67
1.0% to 2%
6.25%
6.25%
6.842%

In addition to the contribution rates above, the District was also required to make payments of $36,572
and $28,303 toward its unfunded actuarial liability during the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.
The Classic Miscellaneous Plan is closed to new members that are not already CalPERS eligible
participants.
Contributions: Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the
Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined
rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to
contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.
The employer contributions for the Plans were $67,069 and $58,501 for the years ended June 30, 2019
and 2018, respectively.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions:
As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of
the net pension liability of the Plan of $688,430 and $704,360, respectively.
The District’s net pension liability is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability. The
net pension liability as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 is measured as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the total
pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 rolled forward to June 30, 2018 and 2017 using standard update
procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of
all participating employers, actuarially determined. The District’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 was as follows:
Proportion - June 30, 2017
Proportion - June 30, 2018
Change - Increase (Decrease)

0.01727%
0.01784%
0.00057%

Proportion - June 30, 2018
Proportion - June 30, 2019
Change - Increase (Decrease)

0.01784%
0.01827%
0.00043%

For the year ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District had pension expense of $48,847 and $110,851 at
June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to all Plans combined from the following sources:
2019

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date
Differences between actual and expected experience
Changes in assumptions
Change in employer's proportion
Differences between the employer's contribution and
the employer's proportionate share of contributions
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments

2018

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

$ 67,069
26,414
78,484
19,332

$ (8,988)
(19,236)
(2,513)

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
$ 58,501
110,312
32,815

(48,005)
3,403

Total

$ 194,702
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Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

$ (78,742)

$ (40,337)
27,005

(12,826)

$ 228,633

$ (53,163)
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The $67,069 and $58,501 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Other amounts reported as net deferred outflow of resources related
to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended
June 30
2020
2021
2022
2023

$ 51,870
26,956
(23,743)
(6,192)
$ 48,891

Actuarial Assumptions: The total pension liabilities in the actuarial valuations for each of the Plans were
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:
June 30, 2019
Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate
Inflation
Payroll Growth
Projected Salary Increase
Investment Rate of Return
Mortality

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2018
Entry-Age Normal Cost Method

June 30, 2016
June 30, 2017
Entry-Age Normal Cost Method

7.15%
2.50%
3.0%
3.3% - 14.2% (1)
7.15% (2)
Derived using CalPERS Membership
Data for all Funds

7.15%
2.75%
3.0%
3.3% - 14.2% (1)
7.15% (2)
Derived using CalPERS Membership
Data for all Funds

(1) Depending on entry age and service
(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The table for June 30, 2019
includes 15 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of scale MP 2016.
For more details on this table, please refer to the December 2017 experience study report (based on
CalPERS demographic data from 1997 to 2015). The underlying mortality assumptions and all other
actuarial assumptions used in June 30, 2018 were based on the 2010 CalPERS experience study for the
period from 1997 to 2007. Further details of the Experience Study can be found on the CalPERS website.
Discount Rate: The discount rates used to measure the total pension liability were 7.15% as of June 30,
2019 and 2018. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a
discount rate for the plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that
would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested
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plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current discount rate is appropriate and the use of the municipal
bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate will be applied to all plans in
the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed report
that can be obtained from the CalPERS website.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each
Fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived
at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and longterm returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated
above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class for the Plan as of the
measurement dates of June 30. The rate of return was calculated using the capital market assumptions
applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative
expenses.

Asset Class
Global Equity
Global Fixed Income
Inflation Sensitive
Private Equity
Real Estate
Infrastructure and
Forestland
Liquidity
Total
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

2019
2018
New Strategic Real Return Real Return New Strategic Real Return Real Return
Allocation Years 1 - 10(a) Years 11+(b) Allocation Years 1 - 10(c) Years 11+(d)
50.0%
28.0%
0.0%
8.0%
13.0%

4.80%
1.00%
0.77%
6.30%
3.75%

5.98%
2.62%
1.81%
7.23%
4.93%

47.0%
19.0%
6.0%
12.0%
11.0%

4.90%
0.80%
0.60%
6.60%
2.80%

5.38%
2.27%
1.39%
6.63%
5.21%

0.0%
1.0%

0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
-0.92%

3.0%
2.0%

3.90%
-0.40%

5.36%
-0.9%

100.0%

100.0%

An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period.
An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.
An expected inflation of 2.50% used for this period.
An expected inflation of 3.00% used for this period.
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Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The
following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plans, calculated
using the discount rate for the Plans, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1percentage point higher than the current rate:

1% Decrease
Net Pension Liability
Current Discount Rate
Net Pension Liability
1% Increase
Net Pension Liability

2019

2018

6.15%
$ 1,144,562

6.15%
$ 1,097,994

$

7.15%
688,430

$

7.15%
704,360

$

8.15%
336,666

$

8.15%
378,345

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.
NOTE F – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Plan Description: The District's defined benefit OPEB plan (the Plan) is a single employer OPEB plan
administered by CalPERS through participation in California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT)
Fund. On June 1, 2005 the Board of Directors passed a resolution to establish health benefit vesting
requirements for future retirees under the public employees’ medical and hospital care act, whereas an
employee who is employed by the District for 5 years or longer and who has met other vesting
requirements as defined by Government Code 20079, shall receive up to a maximum 100% of the health
benefit for the employee premium plus 90% of the additional premium required for enrollment of family
members in selected plans. The retiree benefits for employees hired prior to August 1, 2005 are entitled
to receive the same benefits as active employees noted above. Those hired after August 1, 2005 are
entitled to receive medical only lifetime benefits with required service of 20 years and the plan paying
50% of premiums after 10 years of service and an additional 5% for each additional year of service with a
maximum District contribution of 100%. The minimum age for receiving benefits is 50 and there is no
District cap. The plan also provides coverage for dependents. For employees who are eligible to
participate in the plan, the District will contribute health benefit costs for the retiree and family members
at an amount approved by resolution and accepted by CalPERS based on the average amount of the HMO
plans offered by CalPERS. A retiree with less than the required years of service with the District will
receive no benefit, unless they have previous employment qualifying them for CalPERS retirement, in
which case they are eligible to receive the CalPERS minimum at the time of retirement. The CalPERS
minimum is set by law. The Board of Directors grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit
terms to the CalPERS Board of Trustees (CalPERS Board). CalPERS issues a publicly available
financial report for the CERBT that can be obtained at www.calpers.ca.gov under Forms and
Publications.
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Benefits Provided: The Plan provides healthcare benefits for retirees, surviving spouses and their
dependents. Benefits are provided through a third-party insurer, and the full cost of the benefits are
covered by the Plan.
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms: As of the June 30, 2017 valuation date, the following current and
former employees were covered by the benefit terms:
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments
Active employees

1
4
5

Total

Contributions: The Board of Directors grants the authority to establish and amend the contribution
requirements of the District and employees. Employees are not required to contribute to the Plan. During
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District’s contributions were $25,000 and $23,112,
respectively.
Net OPEB Liability: The District's net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and
the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of June 30, 2017 and 2016.
Actuarial Assumptions: The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2018 and 2017 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement,
unless otherwise specified:

2019
Valuation date
Measurement date
Actuarial cost method
Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate
Inflation
Salary increases
Investment rate of return
Mortality rate
Pre-retirement turnover
Healthcare trend rate

2018

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2018
Entry-age normal cost method

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2017
Entry-age normal cost method

7.0%
2.75%
2.75% per year
7.0%
Derived using CalPERS
membership data
Derived using CalPERS
membership data
4% annually

7.0%
2.75%
2.75% per year
7.0%
Derived using CalPERS
membership data
Derived using CalPERS
membership data
4% annually

Mortality information for active and retired employees was based on 2014 CalPERS tables. The preretirement turnover information was developed based on the 2009 CalPERS Turnover for Miscellaneous
Employees table created by CalPERS.
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The assumed gross return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class

Percentage of
Portfolio

Assumed Gross
Return

57.0%
27.0%
5.0%
8.0%
3.0%

4.82%
1.47%
1.29%
3.76%
0.84%

Global Equity
Fixed Income
Tresaury Inflation Protected Securities
Real Estate Investment Trusts
Commodities

100.0%
Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.0%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that District contributions will be made at rates
equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current
active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

Total OPEB
Liability
Balance at June 30, 2018
Changes in the year:
Service cost
Interest
Contributions - employer
Net investment income
Administrative expenses
Benefit payments
Net changes
Balance at June 30, 2019
(measurement date June 30, 2018)

$

600,661

Increase (Decrease)
Plan Fiduciary
Net OPEB
Net Position
Liability
$

509,064

$

18,644
42,424
(25,000)
(40,420)
912

18,644
42,424
25,000
40,420
(912)
(7,860)
56,648

(7,860)
53,208
$

27

653,869

$

565,712

91,597

(3,440)
$

88,157
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Increase (Decrease)
Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability
Net Position
Liability
Balance at June 30, 2017
Changes in the year:
Service cost
Interest
Contributions - employer
Net investment income
Administrative expenses
Benefit payments
Net changes
Balance at June 30, 2018
(measurement date June 30, 2017)

$ 551,319

$ 446,306

$ 105,013
18,145
38,939
(23,112)
(47,627)
239

18,145
38,939

(7,742)
49,342

23,112
47,627
(239)
(7,742)
62,758

$ 600,661

$ 509,064

(13,416)
$

91,597

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following presents the net
OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's net OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the
current discount rate:

Net OPEB liability

Net OPEB liability

1% Decrease
6%

2019
Current
Discount Rate
7%

1% Increase
8%

$

$

$

169,606

88,157

20,132

1% Decrease
6%

2018
Current
Discount Rate
7%

1% Increase
8%

$

$

$

169,435

91,597

26,609

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates: The following
presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's net OPEB liability would be
if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage
point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Decrease
Net OPEB liability

$

14,443

28

2019
Current
Healthcare Cost
Trend Rates
$

88,157

1% Increase
$

173,921
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2018
Current Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease
1% Increase
Trend Rates
(5.7% Medical
(7.7% Medical
(6.7% Medical
decreasing to 4%) decreasing to 5%) decreasing to 6%)
Net OPEB liability

$

15,007

$

91,597

$

180,708

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued CERBT financial report at www.calpers.ca.gov.
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB: For the year ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 the District recognized OPEB expense of $24,016 and
$32,808, respectively. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

OPEB contributions subsequent
to measurement date
Difference between expected
and actual experience
Net differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments
Total

2019
Deferred
Deferred
Outflows of
Inflows of
Resources
Resources

2018
Deferred
Deferred
Outflows of
Inflows of
Resources
Resources

$

$

25,000

$

25,000

25,000
1,313

$

26,313

$

(3,374)

$

(3,374)

$

-

The $25,000 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions after the measurement date
will be recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability in the following fiscal year. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30
$

2020
2021
2022
2023

(318)
(318)
(583)
(842)

$ (2,061)
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Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources: Gains and losses related to
changes in the total OPEB liability and the fiduciary net position are recognized in OPEB expense
systematically over time. Amounts are first recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss
occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future OPEB expense.
The recognition period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss. The net difference between
projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments is recognized over 5 years.
Age-Adjusted Premiums Not Used: As a general rule, Actuarial Standard of Practice 6 (ASOP 6)
indicates retiree costs should be based on actual claim costs or age-adjusted premiums. However, the
Plan’s net OPEB liability was not computed using age-adjusted premiums because the District’s actuary
applied Section 3.7.7(c)4 for the ASOP 6 and determined age-adjusted premiums are not necessary and
therefore, the Implicit Rate Subsidy is not applicable in calculating the total projection of benefit
payments. This is due to the District participating in the CalPERS health insurance plan, PEMHCA.
PEMHCA uses blended premiums for active and retired participants and is expected to continue this
practice into the future. Contributions based on age-adjusted premiums would be larger than
contributions based on actual premiums charged by PEMHCA. The actuary believes this would overstate
contributions to the CERBT that would not be able to be recovered by the District. Many other actuaries
believe it is appropriate to use age-adjusted premiums when computing net OPEB liabilities under GASB
Statement No. 75. The District’s net OPEB liability would have been significantly larger had it been
computed using age-adjusted premiums.
NOTE G – INSURANCE
The District participates in the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance
Authority (ACWA/JPIA) a public entity risk pool of California water agencies, for general and auto
liability, public official’s liability, property damage, fidelity insurance and workers compensation
liability. ACWA/JPIA provides insurance through the pool up to a certain level, beyond which group
purchased commercial excess insurance is obtained.
The District pays an annual premium to ACWA/JPIA that includes its pro-rata share of excess insurance
premiums, charges for the pooled risk, claims adjusting and legal costs, and administrative and other costs
to operate the ACWA/JPIA. The District’s deductibles and maximum coverage are as follows:
Coverage
General and Auto Liability
(includes public officials liability)
Property Damage
Fidelity
Workers Compensation liability

ACWA/JPIA

Commercial
Insurance

Deductible

$5,000,000

$55,000,000

None

100,000
100,000

500,000,000

$500 to 50,000
$1,000

2,000,000

Cyber Liability
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excess of $2 million
$3,000,000 occurrence/
$5,000,000 aggregate

none
$10,000
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The District continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss to cover all claims for risk
of loss to which the District is exposed. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
NOTE H – LEASE OBLIGATION
The District leases office space under an operating lease ending in December 2021. There is a provision
to extend the lease for another 5 years after the end of the lease. Monthly rent is adjusted by 3% annually.
Rent expense amounted to $23,545 and $22,885 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
Future minimum lease payments are as follows:
Year Ended
June 30
2020
2021

$ 24,240
10,525
$ 34,765

NOTE I – CONTINGENCIES
In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties.
After consultation with legal council, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any,
will not materially affect its financial condition as of June 30, 2019.
NOTE J – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic. The COVID-19 outbreak is disrupting supply chains and affecting production and sales across
a range of industries. The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the District’s operational and financial
performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, and
the impact on customers, employees, and vendors, all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted. At
this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact the financial condition or results of operations is
uncertain.
The District entered into a contract for a new billing system in May 2020 for a total one-time cost of
$9,500 and a monthly subscription fee of $720.
On June 1, 2020, the District entered into an agreement to refinance the 2018 Installment Purchase
Contract at an interest rate of 3.25% and a principal amount of $4,694,000. The debt will be repaid by
July 1, 2040. The agreement pledges net revenues to repay the debt.

31

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET PENSION LIABILITY (UNAUDITED)
Last 10 Years
June 30, 2018

June 30, 2019
Proportion of the net pension liability
Proportionate share of the net pension liability
Covered payroll - measurement period
Proportionate share of the net pension liability as
a percentage of covered payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability

$
$

0.01827%
688,430
338,501

$
$

0.01787%
704,360
323,644

June 30, 2017
$
$

0.01727%
587,867
312,320

June 30, 2016
$
$

0.01607%
440,960
303,257

June 30, 2015
$
$

0.01719%
420,396
295,442

203.38%

217.63%

188.23%

145.41%

142.29%

78.15%

75.05%

81.02%

84.93%

82.11%

Notes to Schedule:
Change in Benefit Terms: The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan changes which occurred after
June 30, 2014 as they have minimal cost impact.
Changes in assumptions: The discount rate was changed from 7.50% in 2015 to 7.65% in 2016 and 2017 and to 7.15% in 2018.
Omitted years: GASB Statement No. 68 was implemented during the year ended June 30, 2015. No information was available prior to this date.

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PENSION PLAN (UNAUDITED)
Last 10 Years
June 30, 2019
Contractually required contribution
(actuarially determined)
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contributions
Contribution deficiency (excess)
Covered payroll - fiscal year
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll
Notes to Schedule:
Valuation date:

Retirement age

June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

June 30, 2015

$

67,069

$

58,501

$

51,598

$

45,788

$

37,674

$

(67,069)
-

$

(58,501)
-

$

(51,598)
-

$

(45,788)
-

$

(37,674)
-

$

324,130
20.69%

$

June 30, 2016

338,501
17.28%

June 30, 2015

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Valuation cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Market
Value
Inflation
Salary increases
Payroll growth
Investment rate of return

June 30, 2018

$

323,644
15.94%

June 30, 2014

$

312,320
14.66%

June 30, 2013

Entry age normal
Level percentage of payroll, closed
Varies, not more than 30 years
Market
Market
Market
Value
Value
Value

2.75%

2.75%
2.75%
Varies by entry age and service
3.00%
3.00%
7.50%
7.50%

3.00%
7.375%
(3)

(3)

(2)

$

309,257
12.18%

June 30, 2012

2.75%

15-year
smoothed
market
2.75%

3.00%
7.50%

3.00%
7.50%

(2)

(2)

Notes to Schedule:
(1)

Net of administrative expenses, includes inflation.

(2)

Probabilities of retirement and mortality are based on CalPERS' 2010 Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2007.

(3)

Probabilities of retirement and mortality are based on CalPERS' 2014 Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2011.

Omitted years: GASB Statement No. 68 was implemented during the year ended June 30, 2015, thus information prior to this date was not
presented.
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SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS (UNAUDITED)

Measurement Period
Total OPEB liability:
Service cost
Interest
Benefit payments
Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability - beginning

2019

Total OPEB liability - ending (a)
Plan fiduciary net position:
Contributions - employer
Net investment income
Benefit payments
Administrative expenses
Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning

$

18,644
42,424
(7,860)
53,208
600,661

$

18,145
38,939
(7,742)
49,342
551,319

$

653,869

$

600,661

$

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)
Net OPEB liability - ending (a)-(b)

25,000 $
40,420
(7,860)
(912)
56,648
509,064

23,112
47,627
(7,742)
(239)
62,758
446,306

$

565,712

$

509,064

$

88,157

$

91,597

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability
Covered-employee payroll - measurement period

86.52%
$

Net OPEB liability as percentage of covered-employee payroll
Notes to schedule:
Valuation date
Measurement period - fiscal year ended

2018

328,152

84.75%
$

327,053

26.86%

28.01%

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2017

Benefit changes. None.
Changes in assumptions. During 2018, the discount rate was changed from 7.5% to 7.0%.
Omitted years: GASB Statement No. 75 was implemented during the year ended June 30, 2018. No information was
available prior to this date. Information will be added prospectively as it becomes available until 10 years are reported.
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SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE OPEB PLAN (UNAUDITED)

2019
Statutorily required contribution - employer fiscal year
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions
Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

Covered-employee payroll - employer fiscal year

$

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

Notes to Schedule:
Valuation date
Measurement period - fiscal year ended

$

7,860
(7,860)
328,152

2018
$
$
$

7,742
(7,742)
327,053

2.40%

2.37%

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2017

An actuarially determined contribution rate was not calculated. The required contributions reported represent
retiree premium payments.

Omitted years: GASB Statement No. 75 was implemented during the year ended June 30, 2018. No information
was available prior to this date. Information will be added prospectively as it becomes available until 10 years are
reported.
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DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2019

Operating
Fund

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Current services
Accrued interest receivable
Prepaid expenses

$

281,992
470,306

Total Current Assets

175,887
4,837
15,529
948,551

Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Net
TOTAL ASSETS
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on refunding
Other postemployment benefits (OPEB)
Pensions

Maintenance
Fund

$

412,281
687,605
49,575

Total

$

694,273
1,157,911

1,149,461

225,462
4,837
15,529
2,098,012

67,170
5,111,738
5,178,908

-

67,170
5,111,738
5,178,908

6,127,459

1,149,461

7,276,920

332,924
26,313
194,702

332,924
26,313
194,702

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

553,939

-

553,939

TOTAL ASSETS AND
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

$ 6,681,398

$ 1,149,461

$ 7,830,859

Continued
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DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued)
June 30, 2019

Operating
Fund

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Unearned revenue
Current portion of noncurrent liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

$

98,248
48,378
1,055
126,534
274,215

Maintenance
Fund

$

21,925

Total

$

21,925

120,173
48,378
1,055
126,534
296,140

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Notes payable, net of current portion
Compensated absences
Net pension obligation
Net OPEB obligation
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

4,598,000
10,137
688,430
88,157
5,384,724

-

4,598,000
10,137
688,430
88,157
5,384,724

TOTAL LIABILITIES

5,658,939

21,925

5,680,864

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Other post-employment benefits (OPEB)
Pensions

3,374
78,742

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS

-

82,116

456,908
483,435

1,127,536

456,908
1,610,971

TOTAL NET POSITION

940,343

1,127,536

2,067,879

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS AND NET POSITION

$ 6,681,398

$ 1,149,461

$ 7,830,859

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

82,116

3,374
78,742

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2018

Operating
Fund

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Current services
Accrued interest receivable
Prepaid expenses

$

158,519
153,917

Total Current Assets

86,593
3,053
23,185
425,267

Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Net

46,520
5,219,426
5,265,946

TOTAL ASSETS

5,691,213

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on refunding
Other postemployment benefits (OPEB)
Pensions

Maintenance
Fund

$

$

504,035
489,401
43,882

1,037,318

Total

$

662,554
643,318
130,475
3,053
23,185
1,462,585

46,520
5,219,426
5,265,946
1,037,318

6,728,531

359,234
25,000
228,633

359,234
25,000
228,633

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

612,867

612,867

TOTAL ASSETS AND
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

$ 6,304,080

$ 1,037,318

$ 7,341,398
Continued
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DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued)
June 30, 2018

Operating
Fund

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Current portion of noncurrent liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

$

19,215
14,340
114,551
148,106

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Notes payable, net of current portion
Compensated absences
Net pension obligation
Net OPEB obligation
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

4,722,000
51,257
704,360
91,597
5,569,214

TOTAL LIABILITIES

5,717,320

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pensions
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Maintenance
Fund

Total

$
$

14,339
14,339

19,215
28,679
114,551
162,445

4,722,000
51,257
704,360
91,597
5,569,214
14,339

5,731,659

53,163

53,163

53,163

53,163

438,946
94,651

1,022,979

438,946
1,117,630

TOTAL NET POSITION

533,597

1,022,979

1,556,576

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS AND NET POSITION

$ 6,304,080

$ 1,037,318

$ 7,341,398

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Operating
Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales
Other Water Sales
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

$ 1,356,207
139,032
1,495,239

OPERATING EXPENSES
General and administrative
Transmission and distribution
Pumping
Water purchases
Depreciation
Pension expense adjustment
Other post-employment benefits (OPEB)
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
NET INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
NON-OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Investment income earned
Reimbursements
Interest expense
TOTAL NON-OPERATING
(EXPENSES) REVENUES
TRANSFERS
Transfers in
Transfers out

Maintenance
Fund
$

594,929

Total
$

594,929

1,951,136
139,032
2,090,168

651,676
265,398
111,090
5,738
212,081
43,582
24,016
1,313,581

-

651,676
265,398
111,090
5,738
212,081
43,582
24,016
1,313,581

181,658

594,929

776,587

(286,640)

16,410
4,946
(286,640)

(286,640)

(265,284)

16,410
4,946

21,356
203,732

TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS

203,732

(203,732)
(203,732)

203,732
(203,732)
-

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

406,746

104,557

511,303

533,597

1,022,979

1,556,576

Net position, beginning of year
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $

940,343

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$

1,127,536

$

2,067,879

DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Operating
Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales
Other Water Sales
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

$

OPERATING EXPENSES
General and administrative
Transmission and distribution
Pumping
Treatment
Water purchases
Depreciation
Pension expense adjustment
Other post-employment benefits (OPEB)
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
NET INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
NON-OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Investment income earned
Interest expense
TOTAL NON-OPERATING
(EXPENSES) REVENUES
TRANSFERS
Transfers in
Transfers out

Maintenance
Fund

808,261

$
595,461
595,461

808,261
595,461
1,403,722

-

657,475
241,341
96,279
4,488
5,535
214,429
52,350
25,000
1,296,897

595,461

106,825

(263,038)

9,693
(263,038)

(263,038)

(253,345)

111,843

(111,843)
(111,843)

111,843
(111,843)
-

(367,100)

220,580

(146,520)

900,697

802,399

1,703,096

533,597

$ 1,022,979

$ 1,556,576

$
808,261

657,475
241,341
96,279
4,488
5,535
214,429
52,350
25,000
1,296,897
(488,636)

9,693

9,693

111,843
TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Net position, beginning of year, as previously reported
Restatement for change in accounting principle -Note N
Net position, beginning of year, as restated
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Total

COMPLIANCE REPORTS

550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210
Sacramento, California 95825
Telephone: (916) 564-8727
FAX: (916) 564-8728

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Del Paso Manor Water District
Sacramento, California
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Del Paso Manor Water District Sacramento, California (the District) as of and for the year ended June
30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 2, 2020.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control described in the
accompanying schedule of findings as Findings 2019-001 to 2019-002 that we consider to be material
weaknesses.
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To the Board of Directors
Del Paso Manor Water District
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Del Paso Manor Water District’s Response to Findings
The District’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule
of findings. The District’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

June 2, 2020
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DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
Finding 2019-001 – Internal Controls over Financial Reporting & Segregation of Duties – Material
Weakness
Condition: The design and implementation of internal controls is crucial to the effective operation of
District and for accurate financial reporting. If proper separation of duties cannot be accomplished, then
maintaining an effective review and oversight function are important to establishing an effective internal
control system. Due to the small staff size, it is difficult to achieve a proper segregation of duties. The
following areas were noted:


The General Manager has the ability to set up new employees in the payroll system, process
payroll and also make adjustments to payroll accounts in the general ledger. If it is not possible
to segregate these duties, then the payroll registers should be reviewed by a Board member or
someone that does not have access to the payroll system.



For most of the fiscal year, the General Manager processed customer payments, recorded
payments in the general ledger, made bank deposits, performed bank reconciliations, and wrote
off customer accounts, with no review of work performed. Cash handling and recording functions
should be separated to reduce the risk of fraud, and if duties cannot be segregated, then work
performed should be reviewed to reduce the risk of error or fraud. The office manager took over
most these duties after the departure of the previous General Manager except that bank
reconciliations are being performed by a consultant, once a replacement General Manager is in
place, this person should review the office managers work to mitigate the segregation of duties
issues.



The General Manager had the ability to purchase items, approve invoices for payment, generate
checks, record checks in the general ledger, sign checks (although a second signature is required),
mail checks and prepare bank reconciliations. These duties should be segregated to ensure proper
segregation of duties, or reviews should be performed by someone that does not have access to
the accounting system.



After the General Manager left, the Office Manager began generating checks for payment. We
noted that after checks are signed, they are returned to the office manager that generates the
check. To ensure proper segregation of duties, these checks should be returned to someone that
does not have access to the accounts payable module in the accounting system. We also noted no
sign-off or indication of review of check runs prior to checks being generated. Check runs should
be reviewed by the General Manager prior to checks being generated.



We were unable to obtain evidence that accounts receivable reflected in the utility billing system
was reconciled to the general ledger throughout the year or at year-end. The District was unable
to provide a listing of accounts receivable from the utility billing system as of June 30, 2019, so
we were unable to determine the aging of the receivable balances and to compare the utility
billing system outstanding balances to the general ledger. We were also unable to determine
customers with credit balances that should have been reclassified to deferred revenue. The
District needs to ensure that it works with its software company to determine how this report can
be generated and compare this report to the general ledger on a monthly basis by someone
independent of the billing and payment processing.



Adjustments and write offs to customer accounts are done by the Office Manager, or General
Manager. However, there is no written policy establishing limits for write-offs to be made by the
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DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
Office Manager or General Manager and levels at which write-offs need to be approved by the
Board. A policy should be developed to place an authorization limit on write-offs and
adjustments for the Office Manager that requires large adjustments to be approved by the General
Manager and/or the Board. A record of adjustments should be maintained and initialed to
document approval.


Bank reconciliations are being performed, but are not being reviewed. The bank reconciliations
should be reviewed by someone not having access to the general ledger. This review should be
documented by initials and date on the reconciliation to show review is done timely.

Criteria: Internal controls over financial reporting should be in place to ensure the District has the ability
to initiate, record, process and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the
financial statements and to properly reduce the risk of fraud by establishing proper separation of duties
and review functions.
Cause: The District has limited staff to ensure adequate segregation of duties and has not put in place
reviews to mitigate the risk of the lack of segregation of duties.
Effect: An increased risk that a material misstatement of the financial statements could occur due to fraud
or error and not be detected or corrected timely.
Recommendation: We recommend that the District develop internal control procedures to create a
responsible structure for accurate financial reporting and proper separation of duties. Procedures should
be in place to prepare the required reconciliations at year-end and throughout the year. Policies and
procedures should be developed to ensure proper separation of duties and oversight.
District’s Response: Once the permanent General Manager is hired, review procedures will be
established so that the General Manager reviews the Office Managers work, in terms of cash
receipt/payment processing, vendor invoice processing and payroll processing. Source documents such as
deposit slips, vendor invoices, and the payroll registers will have initials to indicate who prepared the
documents and who reviewed/approved the documents.
Policies will be established to indicate who has the authority and level of authority to initiate and approve
transactions. Vendor invoices will be initialed to indicate approval of the transactions and the account
coding of the transactions. As the general manager will have check signing authority, one board member
will also continue to approve and sign checks for payment. As board members sign checks, they will also
be reviewing vendor invoices presented for payment.
Towards the end of fiscal 2020, the district upgraded its utility billing system. This new system will be
able to identity all customer account balances at a point in time (i.e. end of fiscal year). As part of the
accounting process, a reconciliation will be performed with the office manager and outside accounting
consultant to ensure the general ledger agrees with the billing system. A policy will be established to
determine who has the authority to write off customer accounts, the level of authority, and final approval
of the board in closed sessions.
The districts outside account independently performs the accounting function from using and reviewing
source documents. This process includes reviewing vendor invoices, ensuring that invoices are in the
name of the district and reviewing the bank statements. The outside accountant also performs the
monthly bank reconciliations, and reviews checks/check stubs to make sure they are payable to the name
on the vendor invoices. Any irregular or questionable transactions will be reported to the appropriate
level of management or the board.
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DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
Finding 2019-002 – Capital Assets – Material Weakness
Condition: Developer-constructed infrastructure that is deeded to the District has not been recorded as
capital assets in the District’s general ledger. In addition, an inventory of the capital assets has not been
performed recently to verify whether assets on the listing are still on-hand. We also noted that the Board
does not approve asset disposals.
Criteria: A complete and accurate capital asset listing including developer-constructed assets needs to be
maintained.
Cause: Due to the District’s small staff size, it appears certain policies and procedures have not been put
into place.
Effect: This situation creates a misstatement of the capital assets.
Recommendation: We recommend the following:


Estimate and record the amount of developer donated assets and related depreciation.



Physical count of capital assets to be performed, to determine if any impaired or disposed assets
remain on the capital asset listing that need to be removed.



Develop a capital asset policy that includes a threshold for capitalizing items and useful lives to
depreciate capital assets.



Require Board approval of disposals.

District’s Response: A capital asset policy and a maintenance fund policy will be established indicating
the types of purchases that will be capitalized, capitalization thresholds, useful lives and depreciation
methods. An inventory of fixed assets, based on the current fixed asset list, will be performed and
updated as necessary. A definition of maintenance fund expenditures will also be established so that the
district can easily track the maintenance fund; and any proposed disposals of capitalized assets will
require board approval.
Management and staff will perform an analysis to determine if the amount of developer infrastructure can
be calculated, and if reasonable, amounts will be included in the fixed asset listing and general ledger.
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DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FINDINGS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
FS 2018-001: Segregation of Duties
The prior auditor noted, due to the small size of the District and limited number of personnel involved in
the accounting function, the District had a lack of segregation of duties, as one person is capable of
handling all aspects of processing transactions from beginning to end. A lack of segregation of duties
increases the risk of potential errors or irregularities; however, due to a limited number of personnel an
adequate segregation of duties is not possible without incurring additional costs. The prior auditor
indicated they have also noted this comment in previous audits.
Status: See Finding 2019-001 for current status.
FS 2018-002
The District relies on the external auditor to ensure its financial statements are in accordance with GAAP.
In addition, the District relies on the external auditor to ensure that all necessary disclosures are included
in the notes to the financial statements. The District does not employ a staff member with the necessary
knowledge and training to prepare governmental financial statements. In accordance with Statement of
Auditing Standards No. 122c external auditors cannot be part of an entity’s internal controls over
preparation of the financial statements and are prohibited from auditing their own work, which would
impair their independence.
Status: The District hired an external qualified accountant to prepare the GAAP closing entries for the
financial statements.
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Del Paso Manor Water District
Expense Budget To Actual Comparison
July 1, 2019 to May 31, 2020

Notes
Year to Date
July 1, 2019
to May 31, 2020

Budget

Percent of
Budget

Employee Related
Management Salaries
Staff Salaries
Director Fees
Payroll Taxes
PERS Retirement
Health
OPEB

44,572
116,057
24,300
14,030
59,044
76,938
-

100,000
190,000
20,000
25,000
80,000
136,500
45,000

44.57%
61.08%
121.50%
56.12%
73.81%
56.36%
0.00%

334,941

596,500

56.15%

17,915
81,140
700
110,674
3,728
47,847
1,200
34,833
-

15,000
80,000
11,900
40,000
500
500
15,000
300
40,000
10,000
3,000

119.43%
101.43%
5.88%
276.69%
0.00%
745.60%
318.98%
400.00%
87.08%
0.00%
0.00%

298,037

216,200

137.85%

51,589
173,454
13,178
2,914

3,350
103,000
80,000
11,500
90,000
5,900

0.00%
50.09%
216.82%
114.59%
0.00%
49.39%

Total Operating

241,135

293,750

82.09%

Total Expenses

874,113

1,106,450

79.00%

Total Employee Related
Administration
Insurance
Office Expense
Audit Fees
Legal Fees
Employee Recruitment
Miscellaneous
Professional Administration Fees
Bank Charges
Professional Dues
Professional Meetings
Cert/Continuing Education
Total Administration

1

3

Operations
Conservation
Power
Repairs & Maintenance
Lab Fees
Engineering/Consulting Fees
City Water

Note 1: Included in Office Expense is the purchase of four HP office computers and maintenance
subscription services for $7,801.
Note 2: Included in Repairs & Maintenance is a $39,905 expense to Odell's Pump and Motor Service
in July 2019, expenses of $33,011 to Sacramento Suburban Water District, and $9,338
for the roof repair at Lusk drive.
Note 3: Included in Professional Administrative Fees is a $9,661 expense to the State Water
Resource Control Board in December 2019.
Total revenues recorded through May 2020 is $1,912,323.10
Interest and miscellaneous income recorded through May 2020 is $19,938.
Interest expense paid through May 2020 is $242,683.
Amounts above are not audited
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Del Paso Manor Water District
Fiscal 2020 L.A.I.F Activity
July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Beginning balance, July 1, 2019

$1,157,910.84

July 2019 quarterly interest payment

4,836.70

October 2019 quarterly interest payment

7,164.57

January 2020 quarterly interest payment

6,720.82

April 2020 quarterly interest payment

5,921.78

Ending balance, June 30, 2020

$1,182,554.71

***An interest payment for the quarter ending June 30, 2020 is expected in July 2020.

RESOLUTION NO. 20200701
A RESOLUTION OF THE DEL PASO MANOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AMENDING THE DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT BOARD OF
DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Del Paso Manor Water
District (the “District”) seeks to amend a uniform Del Paso Manor Water District Board
of Directors Policy Manual (“Policy Manual”);
WHEREAS, the Policy Manual which was adopted on May 5, 2020 serves as a
reference on adopted practices and procedures pertaining to Board meetings, Board
powers and responsibilities, and ethical duties; and
WHEREAS, the Policy Manual also provides an overview of District operations
and procedures; and
WHEREAS, a copy of the amendments to the Policy Manual will be given to
each Board member; and
WHEREAS, the District will provide the Policy Manual to newly elected Board
members, which will facilitate their transition into public office; and
WHEREAS, the District will amend Policy Number 2100: Accounts Receivable
Policy and Policy Number 2150: Reserve Policy. The District will add Policy Number
2435: Capital Asset Policy to the Policy Manual and
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board does, hereby, amends
the revised Del Paso Manor Water District Board of Directors Policy Manual 2020
attached hereto and incorporated as Exhibit A.
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Del Paso Manor Water
District at a meeting of said Board held on the ___ day of _________________, 2020, by
the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT/ABSTAIN:

______________________________
John Lenahan
Board President
Del Paso Manor Water District

{CW093716.1}

Exhibit A
Policy Number 2100: Accounts Receivable Policy
Policy Number 2150: Reserve Policy
Policy Number 2435: Capital Asset Policy

{CW093716.1}

Original: POLICY NUMBER 2100: Accounts Receivable Policy
2100.1
It is the policy of the District that accounts receivable be reviewed monthly, as it is critical to
the cash flow of the District and requires continued follow-up and attention.
2100.2

Procedures:

a) The accounts receivable balances are reviewed monthly by the General Manager along with assigned
staff. b) Notices are sent for all accounts 30 or more days past their due date. c) Finance charges are
assessed as per District Ordinance No. __, as such may be amended from time to time. d) Credit memos
are limited to control of the General Manager. e) At month-end closing, an accounts receivable
schedule is prepared, reviewed, and reconciled to the General Ledger. The trial balance report is
compared to the General Ledger for accuracy. f) An appropriate allowance for bad debt is carried on the
Balance Sheet. Every attempt is made for collection. At year-end it is determined if there are
uncollectible items. If so, those uncollectable items may be written off by the General Manager upon
approval by the Board.

Amended: POLICY NUMBER 2100: Accounts Receivable Policy
2100.1
It is the policy of the District that accounts receivable be reviewed monthly, as it is critical to
the cash flow of the District and requires continued follow-up and attention.
2100.2

Procedures:

a) The accounts receivable balances are reviewed monthly by the General Manager along with assigned
staff. b) Notices are sent for all accounts 30 or more days past their due date. c) Finance charges are
assessed as per District Ordinance No. __, as such may be amended from time to time. d) Credit memos
are limited to control of the General Manager. e) At month-end closing, an accounts receivable
schedule is prepared, reviewed, and reconciled to the General Ledger. The trial balance report is
compared to the General Ledger for accuracy. f) An appropriate allowance for bad debt is carried on the
Balance Sheet. Every attempt is made for collection. At year-end it is determined if there are
uncollectible items. If so, those uncollectable items may be written off by the General Manager upon
approval by the Board.
2100.3
Late Fees: The District may impose a $30 fee for returned checks and a $10.00 late fee if the
payment is over 60 days late.

POLICY NUMBER 2150: Reserve Policy
2150.1 Purpose: The District shall maintain reserve funds from existing unrestricted funds as
designated by the District’s Reserve Policy.
1)

Operations & Maintenance (O&M):

The reserve amount for this fund will be six months of the next years budgeting operating
expenses. Currently, it is projected to reach this level in 2022. At that time, the District will
review and adjust if necessary.
2) Debt Service/Bond Covenant Reserve:
Recommended funding level is as required by the debt documents. The current debt requires the
District to maintain its annual revenues, including reserves, sufficient to cover annual operating
expenses and 120% of next year’s debt service.
2150.2 Monitoring Reserve Levels: The General Manager, in collaboration with the Board
President, shall perform a reserve status analysis annually, to be provided to the Board of
Directors’ annual deliberation/approval of Budget and Reserve Funds.
Additional information may be provided to the Board of Directors upon the occurrence of the
following events: a) When a major change in conditions threatens the reserve levels established
by this policy or calls into question the effectiveness of this policy; b) Upon General Manager
and/or Board request.

POLICY NUMBER 2435: Capital Asset Policy
Purpose: The purpose of this policy is to establish guidance in identifying, capitalizing, depreciating,
and accounting for District capital assets.
Definitions: A capital asset is defined under this Policy as an asset owned by the District that – 1) is
acquired for use in District operations, 2) is long-term in nature (i.e., useful life exceeds 1 year), 3) is
subject to depreciation, and 4) has a minimum value of $5,000 (see section 200.20).
2135.1
Policy
The District currently operates with two distinct funding streams; Operations and Maintenance
(O&M) and Planned System Maintenance (CIP). Each funding stream has its own budget and lineitem on the ratepayers’ bi-monthly bill. It is the policy of the District that the following types of
assets will be considered Capital Assets of the District. If an asset does not meet the capitalization
requirements listed in this policy, then it is to be expensed in the year acquired
2135.2
Capital Assets
The District operations program will be maintained at a level that assures system reliability and
efficiency. A well thought out maintenance program will extend the life of the water production and
distribution system and in turn reduce infrastructure costs in the long-term. A. Funding to Meet
Regulations and Standards - The District will adequately fund costs to meet current industry
standards and regulations (e.g. Safe Drinking Water Act, etc.) in the annual budgeting process.
B. Capital Improvement Plan - The District, as part of its routine planning process, will develop a 5year Water System Master Plan and update it. Further, the District will update its Asset Management
Plans.
C. Adopted Capital Plan - The District will undertake all capital improvements approved by the
Board annually at budget adoption according to the District’s Asset Management Plans.
D. Types of Capital Projects - The District’s capital improvement program will consider mandated
capital, growth related capital and renewal and replacement capital. Financing of Growth-Related
Projects –
E.The financing of growth-related capital projects may be funded from any of the available funding
resources of the District. However, to better meet the District’s needs, the use of long-term debt to
finance growth-related projects will be minimized. When necessary, long-term debt will be issued to
allow the District to better match the financing of these facilities to the timing of the customers as
they connect to the system.
2135.3
Capital Asset Categories
Capital assets shall be segregated into the following categories: A. Land and Land Improvements
with a limited life, such as driveways, walks, fences, landscaping, and parking areas. B. Buildings
and Building Improvements, such as HVAC equipment, interior remodeling features, and
landscaping. C. Hydrants, pressure modulating facilities, Valves and related appurtenances. D.
Transmission and Distribution pipelines. E. Water Storage Facilities. F. Groundwater Wells, Flow
Meters, Etc. G. Pumps, Motors and Water Treatment Facilities H. Water Meters and Appurtenances.
I. Machinery and Equipment, such as generators, compressors, jackhammers, tools, trimmers, etc. J.
Fleet Equipment, such as cars, trucks, trailers and backhoes. K. Office Equipment such as furniture
and fixtures. L. Computer Systems, Purchased Software and Telephones. M. Intangible Assets, such

as easements and internally generated computer software. N. SCADA, including location and
mapping features.
2135.4 Capitalization Thresholds
Capital assets eligible for capitalization, must have: 1) an estimated useful life of at least two years
from the date of acquisition 2) and a minimum value of $5,000, and 3) Such criteria shall be applied
to individual assets and not to groups of assets
2135.5 Impaired Capital Asset Policy
Purpose: The purpose of the Policy is to implement the requirements of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 42, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of
Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries” (GASB 42).
The District will implement procedures to conform to the requirements of GASB 42.
GASB 42 established accounting and financial reporting standards for impairment of capital assets.
A capital asset is considered impaired when its service utility (design capacity or capability) has
declined significantly and unexpectedly.
Capital Asset Impairment Evaluation: The requirements of GASB 42 only apply to capital assets
with material carrying values. If the District has material capital assets that are impaired or
potentially impaired, a determination needs to be made as to whether the impairment loss should be
reported and disclosed.

Account

5201.00 · R & M:5201.15 · Field supplies

5201.00 · R & M:5201.10 · Field equipment

5201.00 · R & M:5201.05 · Leak repairs

80,000

3,000

70,000

5151.00 · Power:5151.10 · SMUD

5201.00 · R & M

2,400

72,400

Estimate based on Ace Hardware and
Ferguson

Estimate based on fiscal 20 activity

Previously included in office expense,
also includes Sacramento County
Utilities

About 1.45% of total payroll costs

5,000
3,350

5151.00 · Power:5151.05 · PG&E

5151.00 · Power

5121.00 · Conservation:5121.15 · Customer water audits

5121.00 · Conservation:5121.10 · RWA efficiency dues

5121.00 · Conservation:5121.05 · Conservation patrol

5121.00 · Conservation

5102.00 · Payroll & payroll taxes:5102.35 · Payroll medc

5102.00 · Payroll & payroll taxes:5102.30 · Payroll soc sec

5102.00 · Payroll & payroll taxes:5102.25 · Office assisstant salary

About 6.2% of total payroll costs

57,000
21,000

Estimated salary of office manager

140,000

5102.00 · Payroll & payroll taxes:5102.15 · Field salaries

5102.00 · Payroll & payroll taxes:5102.20 · Office manager salary

Estimated salary of field supervisor
and 1 field crew member

Comments

120,000

Sub Accounts
Budget

5102.00 · Payroll & payroll taxes:5102.10 · Management salaries

20,000

Fiscal 20/21
Budget

June 4, 2020

Account Listing

Del Paso Manor Water District

Estimated salary of new general
manager

5102.00 · Payroll & payroll taxes:5102.05 · Director fees

5102.00 · Payroll & payroll taxes

4201.00 · Reimbursements - legal rebates

4151.00 · Other water sales

4111.00 · Planned sys main chg

4101.00 · Residential water sales

4:36 PM
06/04/20
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Account

6151.00 · Office expense:6151.30 · Printing

6151.00 · Office expense:6151.25 · Postage

6151.00 · Office expense:6151.20 · Sewer & garbage (Lusk)

6151.00 · Office expense:6151.15 · Internet provider

6151.00 · Office expense:6151.10 · Phone service

6151.00 · Office expense:6151.05 · District office lease

6151.00 · Office expense

5452.00 · Backflow program

5451.00 · City water

5401.00 · Replacements

5351.00 · Engineering

5301.00 · Lab fees (H2O testing)

5251.00 · Insurance:5251.15 · Workers compensation

5251.00 · Insurance:5251.10 · Property

5251.00 · Insurance:5251.05 · Liability

5251.00 · Insurance

5221.00 · Water treatment chem

5211.00 · Cross connection

5201.00 · R & M:5201.65 · Aqua Sierra service contract

5201.00 · R & M:5201.60 · Tesco service contract (well 8)

5201.00 · R & M:5201.55 · Field staff cellular service

5201.00 · R & M:5201.50 · Well rehabiliation

5201.00 · R & M:5201.45 · Well repair & maintenance

5201.00 · R & M:5201.40 · Lubrication oil

5201.00 · R & M:5201.35 · Chlorine

5201.00 · R & M:5201.30 · Dump fees

5201.00 · R & M:5201.25 · Vehicle repairs & maintenance

5201.00 · R & M:5201.20 · Fuel for vehicles

4:36 PM
06/04/20

80,000

5,900

11,500
90,000

18,850

Fiscal 20/21
Budget

June 4, 2020

8,500
2,500

26,000
3,100
2,600

13,000
2,350
3,500

3,300
3,800
1,000

5,000

500

Mail Rite
Inland Business Systems

Based off 2020 amounts
Based off 2020 amounts
Go Daddy and Streamline

Based off 2020 estimates
Based off 2020 estimates
Based off 2020 estimates

About $275 per month in fiscal 20

Estimate from Sierra Chemical
Company

Minimal vehicle repairs in fiscal 20

3,200

Comments

Average of about $263 per month in
fiscal 20

Sub Accounts
Budget

Account Listing

Del Paso Manor Water District
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Account

6561.00 · Professional dues:6561.30 · SGA

6561.00 · Professional dues:6561.25 · RWA

6561.00 · Professional dues:6561.20 · CRWA

6561.00 · Professional dues:6561.15 · CSDA

6561.00 · Professional dues:6561.10 · AWWA

6561.00 · Professional dues:6561.05 · AQUA

6561.00 · Professional dues

6551.00 · Professional meetings:6551.25 · Mileage

6551.00 · Professional meetings:6551.20 · Parking

6551.00 · Professional meetings:6551.15 · Lodging

6551.00 · Professional meetings:6551.10 · Travel expenses

6551.00 · Professional meetings:6551.05 · Conference fees

6551.00 · Professional meetings

6502.00 · Retiree health benefits

6501.00 · Employee healthcare (CalPers)

6461.00 · Vacation benefit

6451.00 · PERS/retirement

6441.00 · OPEB

6431.00 · Pension expense GASB 68

6401.00 · Misc

6301.00 · Legal

6255.00 · Election related

6251.00 · Audit

6171.00 · Bank fees

6151.00 · Office expense:6151.70 · Janitorial

6151.00 · Office expense:6151.65 · Office temporary services

6151.00 · Office expense:6151.60 · GASB 75 valuations

6151.00 · Office expense:6151.55 · Payroll preparation

6151.00 · Office expense:6151.50 · Office furniture

6151.00 · Office expense:6151.45 · Answering service

6151.00 · Office expense:6151.40 · Office supplies

6151.00 · Office expense:6151.35 · Computers & supplies

4:36 PM
06/04/20

41,950

53,000
63,000
10,000

45,000
80,000

40,000
1,000

300
11,900

Fiscal 20/21
Budget

June 4, 2020

7,200
450
6,100
800
9,700
17,200

1,000

1,500
2,000

3,200
4,000
7,000

Sub Accounts
Budget

Account Listing

Del Paso Manor Water District

Non cash expense
Estimate based on June 2020 billing
Estimate based on June 2020 billing

Miscellaneous and employee
Non cash expense

Maria's Cleaning Service

ADP

Terrapin Technology
Office Depot
Stericycle Communications Solutions

Comments
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Account

6753.00 · Amortization expense

6752.00 · Interest expense

4502.00 · Miscellaneous Income

4501.00 · Interest income

6711.00 · Loss on disposition of assets

6651.00 · Depreciation

6610.00 · Certifications/continuing Ed.

6601.00 · Professional Admin fees:6601.40 · General manager consultant fees

6601.00 · Professional Admin fees:6601.35 · CPA fees

6601.00 · Professional Admin fees:6601.30 · Encroachment permits

6601.00 · Professional Admin fees:6601.25 · Air quality permits

6601.00 · Professional Admin fees:6601.20 · LAFCO fees

6601.00 · Professional Admin fees:6601.15 · Cal Pers actuarial reports

6601.00 · Professional Admin fees:6601.10 · NPDES Permit

1,270,150

165,300

3,000

30,700

Fiscal 20/21
Budget

June 4, 2020

18,000

2,300

700

9,700

500

Sub Accounts
Budget

Account Listing

Del Paso Manor Water District

6601.00 · Professional Admin fees:6601.05 · SWRCB annual fees

6601.00 · Professional Admin fees

6561.00 · Professional dues:6561.35 · SAWWA

4:36 PM
06/04/20

170,000 principal payment also due
Non cash

Non cash

Estimate based on fiscal 20

Comments

Page 4 of 4

596,500

604,000

Insurance
Office expense
Bank fees
Audit
Election related
Legal

Administration

136,500

53,000
63,000

Employee healthcare (CalPers)
Retiree health benefits

15,000
80,000
300
11,900
40,000

18,850
80,000
300
11,900
40,000

45,000
80,000

25,000

190,000

21,000
5,000
45,000
80,000

140,000
57,000

Field salaries
Office manager salary
Office assisstant salary

20,000
100,000

FY 19/20
Budget

Payroll soc sec
Payroll medc
OPEB
PERS/retirement

20,000
120,000

Proposed
FY 20/21 Budget

Director fees
Management salaries

Employee Related

Del Paso Manor Water District
Fiscal 20-21 Budget Proposal

3,850
0
0
0
0
0

7,500

(83,500)
63,000

(4,000)
5,000
0
0

(50,000)
57,000
0

0
20,000

Change From
FY 19/20 to 20/21

Insurance expense through March 20 was
$18,000

The budgeted amount of $136,500 for FY 20 was
for employees and retirees

OPEB expense in FY 19 was $25,000

The budgeted amount of $25,000 for FY 20 was
for social security and medicare taxes

The budgeted amount of $190,000 for FY 20
represented staff salaries (field and office)

Comments

5,900

293,750

5,900

263,300

1,106,450

11,500
90,000

11,500
90,000

1,440,000

103,000
80,000

3,350

72,400
80,000

3,500

Amounts highlighted in yellow need further consideration

Total Disbursements

Power
R&M
Cross connection
Water treatment chem
Lab fees (H2O testing)
Engineering
Replacements
City water
Backflow program

Conservation

Operations

333,550

(30,450)

(30,600)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

150

356,500

216,200

572,700

15,700
0
0

0
0
1,950

335,000

15,000
3,000

1,000
10,000
40,000

335,000

30,700
3,000

Professional Admin fees
Certifications/continuing Ed.
Fixed asset additions/replacements

Interest expense & debt service

1,000
10,000
41,950

Misc
Professional meetings
Professional dues

Power expense through March 20 was $52,000

Any plans for this category in FY 21
Debt service requirements were not budgeted
for in FY 20. Debt service comes out of CIP
account

Admin fees through April 20 was $48,000; FY 21
should be higher

Miscellaneous expense includes employee
recruitment
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Del Paso Manor
Water District
Este informe contiene información muy importante sobre su agua potable. Tradúzcalo o hable con alguien que lo entienda bien.

PWS ID#: CA3410007

Report Introduction

T

his annual water quality report provides
a detailed summary of the water quality
from the Del Paso Manor Water District
(DPMWD or District) wells that were
used to meet customer demand in 2019.
It includes details about where your
water comes from, what it contains,
and how it compares to State standards.
We are committed to providing you this
information because informed customers
are our best allies.

DPMWD’s Board of Directors
John Lenahan (President)
Marissa Burt (Vice President)
Robert J. Matteoli
Gregory Schneider
Andrew Ping

Board Meetings

T

he Board of Directors meet the first Tuesday
of the month at 6:30 p.m. at the DPMWD
office, located at 1817 Maryal Drive, Suite 300,
Sacramento, CA.
Board of Directors meetings may be held
in-person and/or via video conference. Please
contact the DPMWD office at (916) 487-0419
for additional information regarding meeting
times and venues.

The Source of Your Water Supply

D

PMWD has seven active wells (Wells 2, 4, 5, 6B, 7, 8,
and 9) and one standby well (Well 3) that are located
throughout the service area. The well depths range from
approximately 300 to 500 feet below ground surface (ft-bgs)
and aquifer depth varies from 95 to 500 ft-bgs. Pumping
water levels are approximately 95 to 125 ft-bgs. Chlorine is
added as a disinfectant.

What Are PPCPs?

W

hen cleaning out your medicine cabinet, what do you
do with your expired pills? Many people flush them
down the toilet or toss them into the trash. Although this seems
convenient, these actions could threaten our water supply.
Recent studies are generating a growing concern over
pharmaceuticals and personal care products (PPCPs) entering
water supplies. PPCPs include human and veterinary drugs
(prescription or over-the-counter) and consumer products,
such as cosmetics, fragrances, lotions, sunscreens, and house
cleaning products. From 2006 to 2010, the number of U.S.
prescriptions increased 12 percent to a record 3.7 billion,
while nonprescription drug purchases held steady around 3.3
billion. Many of these drugs and personal care products do not
biodegrade and may persist in the environment for years.
The best and most cost-effective way to ensure safe water at
the tap is to keep our source waters clean. Never flush unused
medications down the toilet or sink. Instead, check to see if the
pharmacy where you made your purchase accepts medications
for disposal, or contact your local health department for
information on proper disposal methods and drop-off locations.
You can also visit https://www.dontrushtoflush.org/ to find
more information about disposal locations in your area.

Important Health Information

S

ome people may be more vulnerable to contaminants in drinking water than the
general population. Immunocompromised persons such as persons with cancer
undergoing chemotherapy, persons who have undergone organ transplants, people
with HIV/AIDS or other immune system disorders, some elderly, and infants can be
particularly at risk from infections. These people should seek advice about drinking
water from their health care providers. U.S. EPA/Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention (CDC) guidelines on appropriate means to lessen the risk of infection by
Cryptosporidium and other microbial contaminants are available from the Safe Drinking
Water Hotline (1-800-426-4791).

Source Water Assessment

A

source water assessment was completed for our system in 2002. The wells in DPMWD are considered most
vulnerable to the following activities: dry cleaners, gas stations, historic gas stations, and sewer collection systems.
The susceptibility rating for all the wells is moderate. You may review a copy of the assessment by contacting the
DPMWD office at (916) 487-0419.

Overview of Drinking Water

T

he sources of drinking water (both tap water and bottled water) include rivers, lakes, streams, ponds, reservoirs, springs,
and wells. As water travels over the surface of the land or through the ground, it dissolves naturally occurring minerals and,
in some cases, radioactive material, and can pick up substances resulting from the presence of animals or from human activity.
In order In order to ensure that tap water is safe to drink, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) and the State
Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking Water (DDW) prescribe regulations that limit the amount of certain
contaminants in water provided by public water systems. The U.S. Food and Drug Administration regulations and California
law also establish limits for contaminants in bottled water that provide the same protection for public health. Drinking water,
including bottled water, may reasonably be expected to contain at least small amounts of some contaminants. The presence of
contaminants does not necessarily indicate that water poses a health risk.
Contaminants that may be present in source water include:
Microbial Contaminants, such as viruses and bacteria, that may come from sewage treatment plants, septic systems, agricultural
livestock operations, and wildlife;
Inorganic Contaminants, such as salts and metals, that can be naturally occurring or can result from urban storm-water runoff,
industrial or domestic wastewater discharges, oil and gas production, mining, or farming;
Pesticides and Herbicides, that may come from a variety of sources such as agriculture, urban storm-water runoff, and
residential uses;
Organic Chemical Contaminants, including synthetic and volatile organic chemicals, which are by-products of industrial
processes and petroleum production, and which can also come from gas stations, urban storm-water runoff, agricultural
applications, and septic systems;
Radioactive Contaminants, that can be naturally occurring or can be the result of oil and gas production and mining activities.
More information about contaminants and potential health effects can be obtained by calling the U.S. EPA’s Safe Drinking
Water Hotline at (800) 426-4791.

Lead in Home Plumbing

Lead Sampling in Schools

f present, elevated levels of lead can cause serious
health problems, especially for pregnant women and
young children. Lead in drinking water is primarily
from materials and components associated with service
lines and home plumbing. DPMWD is responsible for
providing high quality drinking water, but cannot control
the variety of materials used in plumbing components.
When your water has been sitting for several hours, you
can minimize the potential for lead exposure by flushing
your tap for 30 seconds to 2 minutes before using water
for drinking or cooking. If you are concerned about lead
in your water, you may wish to have your water tested.
Information on lead in drinking water, testing methods,
and steps you can take to minimize exposure is available
from the Safe Drinking Water Hotline or at http://www.
epa.gov/lead

n accordance with regulatory requirements,
DPMWD provided drinking water lead sampling
and reporting services for the two public K-12 schools
served by the District. DPMWD staff collected five
samples each from El Camino High School and Del
Paso Manor Elementary. If you would like to know the
monitoring results, please visit DDW’s “Lead Sampling
of Drinking Water in California Schools” web page
at https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/
certlic/drinkingwater/leadsamplinginschools.html, or
contact your child’s school.

I

I

Questions?
For more information about this report, or for any questions about your drinking water, please call the
General Manager at (916) 487-0419, or visit our website at https://www.delpasomanorwd.org/.

Well 8 - Monitoring and Maximum Contaminant Level Violations

A

water sample collected from Well 8 on June 21,
2016, resulted in a 1-part-per-billion (ppb) detection
of PCE. This detection required DPMWD to begin
quarterly monitoring at Well 8 in the third quarter of 2016.
The required quarterly monitoring was not initiated by
DPMWD at the time.
On August 23, 2019, DDW issued a Notice of Violation
(NOV) to DPMWD for failing to initiate quarterly
monitoring at Well 8 following the June 2016 detection of
PCE. The NOV directed DPMWD to immediately begin
quarterly monitoring of PCE and vinyl chloride at Well 8.
DPMWD did not respond to the NOV; however, quarterly
PCE monitoring was initiated.
As a result of the monitoring NOV, the 2019 Consumer
Confidence Report (CCR) is required to include a statement
indicating that the potential adverse health effects associated
with a monitoring violation are “Unknown.” The CCR
is also required to describe the steps taken to correct the
violation. DPMWD did not implement the steps required
to correct the violation.
Before the June 21, 2016 detection of PCE, monitoring
for Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) (which includes
PCE) at Well 8 was on a three-year cycle. As a result of not
recognizing the required increased monitoring frequency,
the next sample for VOCs from Well 8 was collected
approximately three years later, on August 13, 2019. The
results from the August 2019 sample indicated that all
VOCs, with the exception of PCE, were reported as not
detected. The PCE result (13 ppb) was over the Maximum
Contaminant Level (MCL) of 5 ppb.

Regulatory requirements indicate that when a VOC sample
result exceeds its corresponding MCL, the water system
is required to report that result to DDW within 48
hours. Furthermore, unless use of the source (Well 8)
is discontinued, the water system is required to begin
monthly sampling for the next six months. DPMWD was
noncompliant on both of these requirements. Well 8 was
subsequently taken offline in October 2019.
On December 30, 2019, an additional sample for PCE was
collected from Well 8. While the PCE result (5.9 ppb) was
substantially lower than the 13 ppb August result, it was still
over the 5 ppb MCL. Based on the two PCE results for Well
8 in 2019, the average PCE result for Well 8 in 2019 is 9.5
ppb. This puts DPMWD in violation of the MCL for PCE.
In addition, vinyl chloride analysis was not performed (as
required in the NOV) on the sample collected in December
2019. As of June 15, 2020, DDW has not implemented any
additional enforcement action against DPMWD since the
August 23, 2019 NOV.
The potential adverse health effects for using water with
PCE over the MCL are as follows: “Some people who
use water containing tetrachloroethylene in excess of the
MCL over many years may experience liver problems,
and may have an increased risk of getting cancer.” Because
Well 8 has been removed from service, there should be no
further customer concerns about receiving water with PCE
over the MCL, and therefore, no action by customers is
recommended or required. The DPMWD is committed to
addressing the compliance concerns described above in a
timely manner. DPMWD’s top priority is safe, clean, and
affordable water for the District’s ratepayers.

5
TT

1 positive
monthly
sample

2016–2019

2015–2019
2018–2019

2019

2019
2019

2019

Fluoride (ppm)

Gross Alpha Particle Activity (pCi/L)

Hexavalent Chromium (ppb)

Nitrate [as nitrogen] (ppm)

Tetrachloroethylene [PCE]2 (ppb)

Total Coliform Bacteria [federal
Revised Total Coliform Rule]
(positive samples)

Total Coliform Bacteria [state
Total Coliform Rule] (# positive
samples)

1

(0)

NA

0.06

13

13

3.15

1.9

5.9

0.02

10

ND

ND

0.65

2.4

AVERAGE

(0)

1

[4 (as
Cl2)]

0.004

PHG
(MCLG)
[MRDLG]

Copper (ppm)

SUBSTANCE
(UNIT OF MEASURE)

2019

YEAR
SAMPLED
AL

1.3

0.3

PHG
(MCLG)

0.25

AMOUNT
DETECTED
(90TH %ILE)

0/20

SITES ABOVE
AL/TOTAL
SITES

No

VIOLATION

NA

NA

ND–13

1.4–2.8

3.9–8.8

ND–4.2

ND–0.1

No

No

Yes

No

No

No

No

No

No

VIOLATION

Naturally present in the environment

Naturally present in the environment

Discharge from factories, dry cleaners, and auto
shops (metal degreaser)

Runoff and leaching from fertilizer use; leaching
from septic tanks and sewage; erosion of natural
deposits

Discharge from electroplating factories, leather
tanneries, wood preservation, chemical synthesis,
refractory production, and textile manufacturing
facilities; erosion of natural deposits

Erosion of natural deposits

Erosion of natural deposits; water additive that
promotes strong teeth; discharge from fertilizer and
aluminum factories

Drinking water disinfectant added for treatment

Erosion of natural deposits; runoff from orchards;
glass and electronics production wastes

TYPICAL SOURCE

Internal corrosion of household plumbing systems; erosion of
natural deposits; leaching from wood preservatives

TYPICAL SOURCE

0.42–1.2

ND–3.2

RANGE

LOW-HIGH

Tap Water Samples Collected for Copper and Lead Analyses from Sample Sites throughout the Community

10

NS

15

2.0

[4.0 (as
Cl2)]

2019

Chlorine (ppm)

10

MCL
[MRDL]

2016–2019

YEAR
SAMPLED

Arsenic (ppb)

SUBSTANCE
(UNIT OF MEASURE)

REGULATED SUBSTANCES

Last year, we conducted several tests for over 140 contaminants. The table below lists only those contaminants that were detected, and the levels
detected in the three wells (Well 6B, Well 8, and Well 9) that were used to support the system. Only one of those contaminants (Tetrachloroethylene
[PCE]) was detected at a level higher than DDW allows. For more information, please see the section titled, “Well 8 - Monitoring and Maximum
Contaminant Level Violations.”

he table below includes results of samples collected in 2017, 2018, and 2019, as well as other water quality data. DDW allows DPMWD to
monitor for some contaminants less than once per year because their concentrations do not change frequently. As a result, some of the data is
from samples that were collected more than one year ago.

T

Water Quality Testing

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

Chloride (ppm)

Iron (ppb)

Manganese (ppb)

Odor–Threshold (TON)

Specific Conductance (µS/cm)

Sulfate (ppm)

Total Dissolved Solids (ppm)

Turbidity (NTU)

2019

2019

2019

2019

Hardness, Total [as
CaCO3]4 (ppm)

Magnesium (ppm)

pH (Units)

Sodium (ppm)

14

7.8

14.2
11–16

7.7–7.9

13–17

100–140

18–26

100–110

RANGE

LOW-HIGH

0.33

212

5.2

283

ND

ND

ND

15

AVERAGE

ND–0.91

200–230

2.8–7.8

260–320

ND–2

ND–39

ND–130

12–17

RANGE

LOW-HIGH

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

VIOLATION

Soil runoff

MRDL (Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level): The highest level of
a disinfectant allowed in drinking water. There is convincing evidence
that addition of a disinfectant is necessary for control of microbial
contaminants.

MCLG (Maximum Contaminant Level Goal): The level of a
contaminant in drinking water below which there is no known or
expected risk to health. MCLGs are set by the U.S. EPA.

MCL (Maximum Contaminant Level): The highest level of a
contaminant that is allowed in drinking water. Primary MCLs are set as
close to the PHGs (or MCLGs) as is economically and technologically
feasible. Secondary MCLs (SMCLs) are set to protect the odor, taste and
appearance of drinking water.

AL (Regulatory Action Level): The concentration of a contaminant
which, if exceeded, triggers treatment or other requirements that a water
system must follow.

PHG (Public Health Goal): The level of a contaminant in drinking
water below which there is no known or expected risk to health. PHGs
are set by the California EPA.

PDWS (Primary Drinking Water Standard): MCLs and MRDLs
for contaminants that affect health along with their monitoring and
reporting requirements, and water treatment requirements.

pCi/L (picocuries per liter): A measure of radioactivity.

NTU (Nephelometric Turbidity Units): Measurement of the clarity, or
turbidity, of water. Turbidity in excess of 5 NTU is just noticeable to the
average person.

NS: No standard.

ND (Not detected): Indicates that the substance was not found by
laboratory analysis.

NA: Not applicable.

MRDLG (Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goal): The level
of a drinking water disinfectant below which there is no known or
expected risk to health. MRDLGs do not reflect the benefits of the use
of disinfectants to control microbial contaminants.

Erosion of natural deposits

Leaching from natural deposits; a measurement of hydrogen ion activity

Erosion of natural deposits

T here is currently no MCL for hexavalent
chromium. The previous MCL of 10 ppb was
withdrawn on September 11, 2017.
2
The PCE detections are associated with Well
8 only. Well 8 was removed from service in
October 2019.
3
Highest number of positive samples in a month
(June, 2019). Repeat samples were absent for
Total Coliform and E. coli.
4
The corresponding values in grains per gallon
(gpg) are as follows: Average = 6.4 gpg; Range =
5.8 - 8.2 gpg.
1

µS/cm (microsiemens per centimeter): A unit expressing the amount
of electrical conductivity of a solution.

TT (Treatment Technique): A required process intended to reduce the
level of a contaminant in drinking water.

TON (Threshold Odor Number): A measure of odor in water.

ppm (parts per million): One part substance per million parts water (or
milligrams per liter).

ppb (parts per billion): One part substance per billion parts water (or
micrograms per liter).

Runoff/leaching from natural deposits

Runoff/leaching from natural deposits; industrial wastes

Substances that form ions when in water

Naturally occurring organic materials

Leaching from natural deposits

Leaching from natural deposits; industrial wastes

Runoff/leaching from natural deposits

TYPICAL SOURCE

Leaching from natural deposits; hardness is the sum of polyvalent cations
present in the water, generally naturally occurring magnesium and calcium

Erosion of natural deposits

Leaching from natural deposits

TYPICAL SOURCE

NS

NS

NS

NS

NS

NS

NS

NS

PHG
(MCLG)

90th %ile: The levels reported for lead and copper represent the 90th
percentile of the total number of sites tested. The 90th percentile is equal
to or greater than 90% of our lead and copper detections.

Definitions

21

110

2019

Calcium (ppm)

103

2019

Alkalinity (ppm)

AVERAGE

YEAR
SAMPLED

SUBSTANCE
(UNIT OF MEASURE)

5

1,000

500

1,600

3

50

300

500

SMCL

UNREGULATED AND OTHER SUBSTANCES

YEAR
SAMPLED

SUBSTANCE
(UNIT OF MEASURE)

SECONDARY SUBSTANCES

ITEM #4
Discuss CalPERS Annual Unfunded Accrued Liability

P.O. Box 942715 Sacramento, CA 94229-2715
888 CalPERS (or 888-225-7377) | Fax: (800) 959-6545
TTY: (877) 249-7442
www.calpers.ca.gov
California Public Employees’ Retirement System

July 01, 2020

Business Unit:
CalPERS ID:
Invoice Number:
Invoice Date:
Payment Due Date:

VICTORIA L. HOPPE
Del Paso Manor Water District
1817 MARYAL DR STE 300
SACRAMENTO, CA 95864-1510

1900
4350807204
100000016090907
July 01, 2020
July 31, 2020

Description

Amount

Annual Unfunded Accrued Liability as of the June 30, 2018 Actuarial Valuation for Rate
Plan Identifier 533.
The total minimum required employer contribution is the sum of the Plan's Employer
Normal Cost Rate (expressed as a percentage of payroll) plus the Employer Unfunded
Accrued Liability Contribution Amount.
Your agency's monthly amount due toward the Unfunded Accrued Liability is:
Amount
$4,514.76

Due Date
July 31, 2020

If you would like to prepay the entire Annual Payment toward your Plan's Unfunded
Accrued Liability, you can submit the Annual Lump Sum Prepayment amount of
$52,375.00 to the invoice number above by July 31, 2020 instead of the monthly amount
listed.
Please refer to the June 30, 2018 Actuarial Valuation report for the details of this
calculation. Reports are available at CalPERS On-Line or by visiting
www.mycalpers.ca.gov
Unfunded Accrued Liability contributions are to be paid in full by the payment due date
each month. Payments that are not received in full on or before this date will be assessed
interest on the total outstanding balance due (Public Employees' Retirement Law § 20572
(b)). Please note that this monthly statement is a demand for payment in accordance with
Public Employees' Retirement Law § 20572 (a).
For questions concerning your invoice, please call our CalPERS Customer Contact
Center at 888 CalPERS (or 888-225-7377) and ask to be referred to the Financial
Office.

Total Due

myCalPERS 2263
Page 1 of 3

0000000124324364

$4,514.76

myCalPERS 2263
Page 2 of 3

0000000124324364

Please pay this statement using Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) debit or Automated Clearing House
(ACH) credit method. Please visit www.mycalpers.ca.gov to schedule a debit EFT payment or call our
CalPERS Customer Contact Center at 888 CalPERS (or 888-225-7377) for information regarding EFT
ACH credit payments. Please allow two banking days prior to the due date for payments to be received at
CalPERS on time.

California Public Employees' Retirement System
www.calpers.ca.gov
myCalPERS 2263
Page 3 of 3

0000000124324364

P.O. Box 942715 Sacramento, CA 94229-2715
888 CalPERS (or 888-225-7377) | Fax: (800) 959-6545
TTY: (877) 249-7442
www.calpers.ca.gov
California Public Employees’ Retirement System

July 01, 2020

Business Unit:
CalPERS ID:
Invoice Number:
Invoice Date:
Payment Due Date:

VICTORIA L. HOPPE
Del Paso Manor Water District
1817 MARYAL DR STE 300
SACRAMENTO, CA 95864-1510

1900
4350807204
100000016090917
July 01, 2020
July 31, 2020

Description

Amount

Annual Unfunded Accrued Liability as of the June 30, 2018 Actuarial Valuation for Rate
Plan Identifier 26600.
The total minimum required employer contribution is the sum of the Plan's Employer
Normal Cost Rate (expressed as a percentage of payroll) plus the Employer Unfunded
Accrued Liability Contribution Amount.
Your agency's monthly amount due toward the Unfunded Accrued Liability is:
Amount
$0.33

Due Date
July 31, 2020

If you would like to prepay the entire Annual Payment toward your Plan's Unfunded
Accrued Liability, you can submit the Annual Lump Sum Prepayment amount of $4.00 to
the invoice number above by July 31, 2020 instead of the monthly amount listed.
Please refer to the June 30, 2018 Actuarial Valuation report for the details of this
calculation. Reports are available at CalPERS On-Line or by visiting
www.mycalpers.ca.gov
Unfunded Accrued Liability contributions are to be paid in full by the payment due date
each month. Payments that are not received in full on or before this date will be assessed
interest on the total outstanding balance due (Public Employees' Retirement Law § 20572
(b)). Please note that this monthly statement is a demand for payment in accordance with
Public Employees' Retirement Law § 20572 (a).
For questions concerning your invoice, please call our CalPERS Customer Contact
Center at 888 CalPERS (or 888-225-7377) and ask to be referred to the Financial
Office.

Total Due

myCalPERS 2263
Page 1 of 2

0000000124324373

$0.33

Please pay this statement using Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) debit or Automated Clearing House
(ACH) credit method. Please visit www.mycalpers.ca.gov to schedule a debit EFT payment or call our
CalPERS Customer Contact Center at 888 CalPERS (or 888-225-7377) for information regarding EFT
ACH credit payments. Please allow two banking days prior to the due date for payments to be received at
CalPERS on time.

California Public Employees' Retirement System
www.calpers.ca.gov
myCalPERS 2263
Page 2 of 2

0000000124324373

ITEM #7
Discussion and/or Action regarding
System Improvement Prioritization Presentation

Del Paso Manor Water District

REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF 7 JULY 2020
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7
AGENDA
SECTION:

STAFF REPORTS

SUBJECT:

System Improvement Prioritization Presentation

PREPARED BY:

Jeff Nelson, Engineering Management Consultant

APPROVED BY:

Jeff Nelson, Engineering Management Consultant

I have been performing an evaluation of the Del Paso Manor Water District’s (District)
water supply system, focusing on the condition of the water supply wells. I have prepared
the attached PowerPoint presentation that summarizes my findings to date to provide an
overview to the Board of Directors. This PowerPoint presentation is intended to
compliment a written Water Supply System Assessment and Prioritization report that I am
in the final stages for completing. I wish to thank Sacramento Suburban Water District for
their support in helping me complete this assessment.
This assessment is based on site inspections, interviews with staff, review of data and files
provided by staff, and the following documents:
•
•
•
•
•

•

2019 Compliance Inspection of the Del Paso Manor County Water District Public
Water System (PWS No. 341007) report by the State Water Resources Control
Board dated January 28th, 2020.
Del Paso Manor Water District Master Plan report by Kennedy Jenks dated July
24th, 2009.
JPIA Recommendations Report by Thor Benzing, date of visit: March 11, 2020.
Pressure Tank inspection reports prepared by ARISE, dated July 17, 18 and 29,
2014.
DPMWD Groundwater Facility Assessment Findings and Ranking report, DPMWD
Well JPIA Inspection Safety Findings and Ranking report, Summary of
Environmental Compliance Concerns report all by Sacramento Suburban Water
District (SSWD) staff and delivered to the District in May 2020.
Information provided by Forsgren and Associates.
1817 Maryal Drive, Suite 300, Sacramento, CA 95864
Phone: (916) 487-0419 Fax: (916) 487-8534
www.delpasomanorwd.org
Rev. 9.10.19

July 7, 2020

Water Supply System Assessment
Summary

Del Paso Manor Water District

* Source capacity required by the State Water Resources Control Board

• Maximum Day Demand – 3,130 gpm or 5.5 mgd*
• Peak Hourly Demand – 4,700 gpm (minimum of 4 hours) or
750,000 gallons of storage*
• Maximum fire flow demand – 3,500 gpm
• Average Day – 1,042 gpm or 1.50 mgd
• Maximum Month Daily Average – 2,035 gpm or 2.93 mgd
• Low flow demand (winter) – 150 gpm
• Water demand requirements can be met by wells that are on
“active” and “standby” status
• Current District capacity – 6,725 gpm (combining wells 2 – 9)

Water System Demand Requirements

Well Number
2
3
4
5
6B
7
8
9
Total

Capacity (gpm)
600
675
550
525
1,100
675
1,100
1,500
6,725

Status
Active
Standby
Active
Active
Active
Active to Standby
Active to Standby
Active

Actions Required
Significant improvements required
1,2,3 TCP Contamination, rehabilitation unlikely
Significant improvements needed
Imperfection in casing being evaluated
Minor improvements required
Significant improvements required
PCE contamination, rehabilitation unlikely
Minor improvements required

Summary of DPMWD Production Wells

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Status – Active, constructed in 1948
Used as back-up supply (along with well 4) to wells 6B and 9
375-500 gpm, fixed rate pump
Never been pulled/assessed
SCADA for monitoring only
Unpermitted portable backup generator
Hydro-pneumatic tank needs replacing
Numerous safety and compliance issues

Well 2

Action Required
Well assessment
Arc Flash Assessment
Pressure tank replacement or upgrade pump control system
Add Secondary Containment
Remove backup generator
Address other safety issues including upgrading pump
base/pedestal, upgrade chlorination system, repair electrical cables
and overhead hazards, signage, eyewash/shower OSHA compliance
Add back-up generator
No direct discharge to sewer, pump-to-waste is currently is to the
surface and dissipates into nearby yards. May require an onsite
inlet to nearby storm drain or sanitary sewer.
Total

Well 2 – Next Steps

$99,000 to $199,000

$20,000
$20,000 to $70,000

Cost
$25,000 - $50,000
$5,000
$25,000 to $40,000
$2,000
$2,000
$20,000 to $30,000

• Status – Standby (2018),
constructed in 1949
• 675 gpm, fixed rate pump
• 1,2,3 TCP detected in water
samples from well
• Well has not been used to supply
water to system since before
2015
• SCADA for monitoring only
• No back-up generator
• Hydro-pneumatic tank needs
replacing
• Numerous safety and compliance
issues

Well 3

Annual Operation and Maintenance costs
Well assessment
Hydro-pneumatic/pressure tank replacement or upgrade control
system
Address other safety/compliance issues including upgrading pump
base/pedestals, chlorination, repair electrical cables, overhead
hazards
Change from Standby to Active status
Approximate Total

Action Required
1,2,3 TCP treatment facility design and construction

Well 3 – Next Steps

$50,000
$1.6 to $2.2 Million

$20,000 to $30,000

Cost
$1,500,000 to
$2,000,000
$250,000/yr
$25,000 to $40,000
$25,000 to $40,000

• Status – Active, constructed
in 1951
• Used as back-up supply
(along with well 2) to wells 6B
and 9
• SCADA for monitoring only
• 550 gpm, fixed rate pump
• No back-up power/generator
• Hydro-pneumatic tank needs
replacing
• Numerous safety and
compliance issues

Well 4

Action Required
Arc flash hazard assessment
Well assessment
Hydro-pneumatic/pressure tank replacement or upgrade pump
control system
Address other safety/compliance issues including upgrading pump
base/pedestals, move eyewash system for OSHA compliance, add
shower system, add secondary containment, chlorination system
compliance, repair electrical cables, signage
No direct discharge to sewer, pump-to-waste is currently is to the
surface and dissipates into nearby yards. May require an onsite
inlet to nearby storm drain or sanitary sewer.
Total

Well 4 – Next Steps

$95,000 to $180,000

$20,000 to $70,000

$20,000 to $30,000

Cost
$5,000
$25,000 to $40,000
$25,000 to $40,000

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Status – Active, constructed in 1948
525 gpm capacity, fixed rate pump
Has not supplied water into the system since 2017
Well casing condition is being evaluated
SCADA for monitoring only
No backup generator
Hydro-pneumatic tank needs replacing
Numerous safety and compliance issues
Located near well 8 and in possible PCE Plume path

Well 5

Total

Action Required
Well assessment
Hydro-pneumatic/pressure tank replacement or upgrade pump
control system
Address other safety/compliance issues including raising
pedestal, signage
No direct discharge to sewer, pump-to-waste is currently is to
the parking lot and then drains to a storm drain. May require an
onsite inlet to nearby storm drain or sanitary sewer.

Well 5 – Next Steps

$80,000 to $160,000

$20,000 to $70,000

$10,000 to $20,000

Cost
$25,000 to $30,000
$25,000 to $40,000

• Status – Active, constructed in
2013, replaced well 6
• 1,100 gpm capacity, VFD pump
• Flagship Well
• Pumped 226,159,000 gallons in
2019
• Full SCADA system
• Permitted backup generator,
only well with back-up power
• Some safety and compliance
issues related to chemical
storage and management
• Has direct discharge to storm
drain

Well 6B

Action Required
Address chemical storage and management issues
Address other safety/compliance issues
Total

Well 6B – Next Steps
Cost
$5,000
$5,000 to $10,000
$10,000 to $15,000

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Status – Active, constructed in 1956
675 gpm capacity, fixed rate pump
Currently not operated due to confined space entry issues
Can only “pump to waste” to street
Mainly used to meet fire flow demand
VFD without Program controls
SCADA system purchased but not installed
No backup generator
Numerous safety and compliance issues

Well 7

Action Required
Well assessment
Confined space entry issues, components need to be moved to
the surface, well head raised, and contained in secure
facility/building. Parcel is very small and there may not be enough
available space for construction of building.
Other safety and compliance issues including signage, eyewash
and shower, chemical storage and management, chlorination
Installation of SCADA and PLC
No direct discharge to sewer, pump-to-waste is currently is to the
street. May require an onsite inlet to storm drain or sanitary
sewer. If discharge to sanitary sewer, sewer district will charge
capacity fees.
The acquisition of additional real estate may be required if the
District chooses to keep and upgrade this well.
Total

Well 7 – Next Steps

$121,000 to $191,000

$46,000
$20,000 to $70,000

$5,000

Cost
$25,000 to $30,000
$25,000 to $40,000

• Status – Being converted to
“Standby” status at recommendation of DDW
• Constructed in 1977
• PCE detected in water samples
• Notice of Violation issued by DDW due to PCE
detection/exceedance
• 1,100 gpm capacity, VFD pump (new)
• SCADA for monitoring only
• No backup generator, but has backup drive system
• Can only “pump to waste” to storm drain system
• Numerous safety and compliance issues including with propane
tank used for powering backup drive

Well 8

Action Required
PCE treatment facility – design and construction
Annual operation and maintenance costs
Electrical hazards including exposed wires, lock out controls
Back-up system - propane tank, bring permit up to date,
maintenance of system and replacement of parts, shutoff valves, etc.
Health and Safety – access to eyewash system and secondary
containment
Due to presence of PCE in Well water cannot discharge directly to
storm drain. Pump to waste will require pumping to a temporary
tanker truck or connection to sanitary sewer.
Approximate Total

Well 8 – Next Steps

$1.5 to $2.0 million

$25,000 to $50,000

$5,000

Cost
$1.5 to $2.0 million
$250,000/yr
$1,500
$2,000

management issues
Address other safety/compliance
issues
Total

• Status – Active, constructed in
2010 (replaced Well 1)
• 1,500 gpm capacity, VFD pump
• Primary well along with well 6B
• Pumped 133,018,000 gallons in
2019
• SCADA for monitoring only
• No backup generator due to
proximity to school
• Some safety and compliance
issues related to chemical
Action Required
storage and management
Address chemical storage and

Well 9

$10,000 to $15,000

$5,000 to $10,000

Cost
$5,000

2,600

1,675
2,450

Reliable

Confirm Reliability

Unreliable

Max month daily average

Fire flow demand

Peak hour demand

Max day demand

Recommendation
Perform well assessment and upgrade well
1,2,3, TCP contamination, eventually abandon
Perform well assessment and upgrade well
Perform well assessment and upgrade well
Conduct required maintenance
Convert to standby and eventually abandon
PCE contamination, eventually abandon
Conduct required maintenance

Total gpm

Capacity (gpm)
600
675
550
525
1,100
675
1,100
1,500
6,725

Rating

Well No.
2
3
4
5
6B
7
8
9
Total

2,035 gpm

3,500 gpm

4,700 gpm

3,130 gpm

Estimated Cost
$99,000 to $199,000
$1.6 to $2.2 million
$95,000 to $180,000
$80,000 to $160,000
$10,000 to $15,000
$121,000 to $191,000
$1.5 to $2.0 Million
$10,000 to $15,000

Summary of DPMWD Production Wells

• Maintain wells 6B and 9
• Evaluate wells 2, 4 and 5, and determine if it is worth investing
in upgrading and continuing to utilize these wells. If so,
prioritize Well for improvements/upgrades
• Evaluate threat of PCE plume to Well 5
• Work with SSWD regarding compensation from PCE source
polluter
• If deemed economical, re-equip either (or both) well 2 and/or
4 with a VFD with an optimal pumping range of 100 to 400
gpm to efficiently meet low flow demands ($100,000) or
re-locate VFD from Well 7, and install back-up power
generator ($100,000)

Recommendations

• Assume wells 3, 7 and 8 (and possibly well 5) will not be put
back into service which will require the development of an
alternative source to meet peak flow requirements
▪ New well(s) – ($2.5 to 3.0 million per well)
▪ Add pressure reducing valve(s) on interconnection(s) to
SSWD ($20,000 to $40,000 per connection)
▪ SSWD’s current price for selling water is $450/acre-foot or
approximately $450/2.4 million gallons. SSWD is in the
process of re-evaluating their price for selling water

Recommendations - continued

ITEM #9
Review and adopt Minutes:

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DEL PASO MANOR WATER DISTRICT
June 2, 2020
6:30 PM
Teleconference Meeting due to Coronavirus Pandemic
The Board of Directors of the Del Paso Manor Water District convened a Regular Board
Meeting using the “GoToMeeting” teleconference system on June 2, 2020 at 6:30 p.m.
The minutes are action only. The recording to the meeting is attached to the minutes as well
the District website.
6/2/2020 Regular Board Meeting
https://transcripts.gotomeeting.com/#/s/930de0f53062faa0d4ddcb0088f518531da21eda4c9911afec31d4fa7
13fa526

6/2/2020 Closed Session Report Out
https://transcripts.gotomeeting.com/#/s/2be89b733df82abea33f4bf82a371a845fd1d4e7be4592708a97cbe0e
9dce90e

Call to Order:
President Lenahan called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.
Roll Call:
Directors Present:
Directors Absent:
Staff Present:
Legal Counsel Present:
Guests:
Public Present:

Marissa Burt, John Lenahan, Robert Matteoli, Andrew Ping, and
Gregory Schneider
None
None
Barbara Brenner, Churchwell White LLP
District Mgt. Consultant Jeff Nelson, SSWD GM Dan York,
& District Auditor Ingrid Sheipline
Several members of the public were on the conference call.

Announcements:
Director Burt introduced Dane Wadle from California Small District’s Association (CSDA). He
requested to give a brief legislative update regarding COVID-19. Director Burt also requested
to discuss the Audit update first since the District Auditor was calling in. Director Schneider
encouraged people to attend the 2x2 Meeting with Sacramento Suburban Water District
(SSWD) and the Finance Standing Committee felt both were very informative and was
disappointed that he was the only one who attended.
Public Comment:
Dan York with SSWD apologized that the community was muted during the 2x2 June 1
meeting. Carol Rose would like an update on the investigation. Josh Winston stated that Sac
Metro Fire has required that the hydrant on Winding Creek Road be replaced. The work was to
start in February, but because of shelter in place orders, the work not considered urgent and
was put on hold. He has requested that the Board allow the work to be completed. President
1

Lenahan stated that COVID-19 policies were adopted by the Board and asked Jeff Nelson to
reach out to Mr. Winston to decide on an appropriate time for this work to occur.
Items for Discussion and/or Action:
1. Discussion regarding Del Paso Mano Water District / Sacramento Suburban Water
District Service Agreement
No action was taken
2. Update and Discussion on Customer Billing System
a. Discuss and/or Action to rename Planned System Maintenance (PSM) to Capital
Improvement Plan (CIP)
Director Schneider moved to change the line items on customers bill from System
Maintenance Charges to Capital Improvement Program and Current Charges to Current
Water Charges pending legal review. Director Burt seconded.
Motion Passed on a Roll Call Vote
Ayes
Burt, Lenahan, Ping, Schneider
Noes
Matteoli
Absent 0
b. Discuss and/or Action regarding district Late Fee Guidelines
No action was taken
3. Finance Standing Committee
a. Discuss 2019-2020 Budget to Actuals
No action was taken

b. Discussion and/or Action to accept 2018-2019 Draft Audit
Director Burt moved to accept the draft audit. Director Ping seconded.
Motion Passed on a Roll Call Vote
Ayes
Burt, Lenahan, Ping, Schneider
Noes
Matteoli
Absent 0
4. Discussion and/or Action regarding General Manager Draft Employment Agreement

Director Schneider moved to approve the General Manager Draft Employment
Agreement with amendments. Director Burt seconded.
Motion Passed on a Roll Call Vote

2

Ayes
Burt, Lenahan, Ping, Schneider
Noes
Matteoli
Absent 0
5. Review and adopt Minutes:

a. May 5, 2020 Regular Meeting
Director Burt moved to approve the May 5, 2020 minutes. Director Ping seconded.
Motion Passed on a Roll Call Vote
Ayes
Burt, Lenahan, Matteoli, Ping, Schneider
Noes
0
Absent 0
b. May 12, 2020 Special Meeting
Director Burt moved to approve the May 12, 2020 minutes. Director Schneider
seconded.
Motion Passed on a Roll Call Vote
Ayes
Burt, Lenahan, Matteoli, Ping, Schneider
Noes
0
Absent 0
c. May 14, 2020 Special Meeting
Director Burt moved to approve the May 14, 2020 minutes. Director Ping seconded.
Motion Passed on a Roll Call Vote
Ayes
Burt, Lenahan, Matteoli, Ping, Schneider
Noes
0
Absent 0
d. May 19, 2020 Special Meeting
Director Burt moved to approve the May 19, 2020 minutes. Director Schneider
seconded.
Motion Passed on a Roll Call Vote
Ayes
Burt, Lenahan, Matteoli, Ping, Schneider
Noes
0
Absent 0
3

6. Review and approve Warrants

Director Burt moved to approve warrants with amendments. Director Ping seconded.
Motion Passed on a Roll Call Vote
Ayes
Burt, Lenahan, Matteoli, Ping, Schneider
Noes
0
Absent 0

Closed Session (Closed Session Items are not opened to the public)
1. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT (GOVERNMENT CODE § 54957(b)(1)) Title:
General Manager
2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION Significant
exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of GOVERNMENT
CODE § 54956.9 Number of potential cases: 2
3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION (GOVERNMENT
CODE § 54956.9) Name of case: Leo Havener v. Del Paso Manor Water District
(Sacramento County Superior Court Case Number 34-2020-00278525)
Return to Open Session: The report out from the closed session is one of the findings
of the report is that there was no evidence of personal information being compromised.
The rest of the report is confidential.

Adjournment:
President Lenahan adjourned the meeting at 10:39 p.m.
Next scheduled meeting: July 7, 2020 Regular Board Meeting

_____________________________
John Lenahan, President

_____________________________
Victoria Hoppe, Secretary

4

ITEM #10
Review and approve Warrants

Del Paso Manor Water District
Vendors Paid - June 2020
VENDORS NAME
ACWA JPIA
ADP
ADP Taxes
Aqua Sierra Controls, Inc.
Aqua Sierra Controls, Inc.
AT&T
AT&T
AT&T
AT&T Mobility
BSK
CalPers
CalPers
CalPers
Churchwell White, LLP
DEX.YP
Emigh Hardware
Ferguson Waterworks
Ferguson Waterworks
GM Construction & Developers, Inc.
GM Construction & Developers, Inc.
Inland Business Systems
Interwest Consulting Group
Jeff Maas
Jorgensen Company
MailRite
Minibilling
One Print Source & Graphics
One Print Source & Graphics
People Ready
PG&E
Richardson & Company
Regional Government Services (RGS)
Regional Government Services (RGS)
Regional Government Services (RGS)
Robert Merritt
Sacramento County Utilities
Sacramento Suburban Water District (SSWD)
Sierra Chemical Company
Sierra Chemical Company
Smud
Smud
Streamline
Terrapin Technology Group
Uinta Holdings, LLC
USA BlueBook
Voya
Wex Bank

DESCRIPTION
Health
Payroll
Payroll Taxes
Well 6B Circuit Breaker Replacement
Programming-remote troubleshoot SCADA

Phone
Phone
Phone
Cell Phones; iPads
Labs
Health
Employee Cont. - Pepra
Employee Cont. - Classic
Services rendered through 05/2020

yellow pages
Material/Supplies
meters
meters
2621 Mayris Court
2680 Avalon Drive
Photocopy machine
April 2020 Management Services
Reimbursement for COE pmt - Acct# 2322
Annual Maintenance for Fire Extinguishers

May/June billing & newsletter
Data mapping/system conversion
Business Cards (Ingle, Swift)
Work Wear
Labor Help
Gas
Services rendered for 2019 Audit
Expense for Job Postings
Executive Recruitment
Staff Recruitment

Services Through May 2020
Utilities
Services Provided through April 2020

Chemicals
Chemicals
Power
Power
Website
July Rent
Well Parts
May Emp. Contribution
Gas

AMOUNT
$356.97
$12,491.62
$4,387.10
$3,587.81
$172.00
$78.80
$193.29
$98.03
$272.73
$84.00
$7,686.93
$1,055.16
$1,158.12
$18,068.90
$15.50
$326.88
$604.52
$159.49
$7,216.93
$2,880.40
$177.12
$4,700.00
$25.22
$306.03
$1,688.48
$10,433.45
$103.44
$526.30
$262.00
$40.89
$11,490.00
$884.00
$3,237.60
$304.50
$2,700.00
$175.22
$10,632.91
$326.25
$274.05
$2,322.04
$3,336.89
$200.00
$139.10
$2,105.00
$328.35
$600.00
$134.38

CHECK #
9627
eft
eft
9601
9620
9609
9619
9623
9600
9614
eft
eft
eft
9606
9590
9622
9617
9617
9594
9594
9624
9591
9605
9608
9615
9604
9611
9611
9618
9593
9612
9595
9607
9629
9610
9596
9602
9592
9613
9598
9597
9626
9616
9628
9603
9599
9625

TOTAL MEETINGS
TOTAL COMPENSATED MEETINGS
TOTAL COMPENSATION

June Monthly Meeting Totals

American Water Works Association (AWWA)
Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA)
Attorney Meeting
California Rural Water Authority (CRWA)
California Special District's Association (CSDA)
DPMWD - AB1234 Ethics Training
6/1/2020 DPMWD / SSWD 2x2 Meeting
Regional Water Authority (RWA)
Sacramento Groundwater Authority (SGA)
Sacramento Suburban Water District (SSWD)
Sexual Harassment Prevention Training (AB1825)
Water Forum

Other Meetings

Succession Planning Committee: Ping/Schneider

ADHOC Committee Meetings

6/2/2020 DPMWD - Regular Board Meeting
6/1/2020 DPMWD - Finance Standing Committee Meeting
DPMWD - Special Board Meeting
DPMWD - Emergency Board Meeting

JUNE 2020 MEETINGS
Board Meetings

3
2
$200

1

1
1

BURT

10
9
$900

1

1

3

3

1
1

LENAHAN

Del Paso Manor Water District
BOD Compensation Expense Summary
June 2020

1
1
$100

1

MATTEOLI

1
1
$100

1

PING

1
1
$100

1

SCHNEIDER

ITEM #18
Management Consultant Report

Del Paso Manor Water District

REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF 7 JULY 2020
AGENDA ITEM NO. 18
AGENDA
SECTION:

STAFF REPORTS

SUBJECT:

Management Consultant Staff Report

PREPARED BY:

Jeff Nelson, Engineering Management Consultant

APPROVED BY:

Jeff Nelson, Engineering Management Consultant

The following report summarizes District activities during the period of June 1st through
July 2nd, 2020.
Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) update - The CCR for 2019 has been
completed, and mailed to customers in time to meet the July 1st deadline. The CCR is
also posted on the District website; SSWD staff and Victoria did a fantastic job in
getting the CCR completed in time to meet the July 1st deadline. I wish to extend a
special thanks to SSWD staff for their efforts.
Teleconference Meeting with Division of Drinking Water (DDW) regarding NOV
I had a conference call with Ali Rezvani, DDW Sacramento District Engineer, and Mike
Tolin, DDW Associate Sanitary Engineer regarding the Notice of Violation (NOV) dated
August 23rd, 2019. After discussing the NOV and recent sampling results with Mr.
Rezvani, he requested that Well 8 be converted to "Standby" status; the permit for
making this conversion has been filed with the DDW. Quarterly sampling results for
samples collected in December 2019 and February 2020 have been forwarded to the
DDW, and I have confirmed with Mr. Tolin that he has received the sampling results
and will have them uploaded into the State database.
Staffing Update – Dylan Swift, Operations and Maintenance Technician II resigned from
the District effective June 30th.
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Munibilling update
First meter billing went out using Munibilling. The bills included an announcement letter
describing the update of the billing system to Munibilling. Staff have received a lot positive
feedback on the information included on their bills. Victoria completed her training with
Munibilling. Staff is still working to complete the transfer of information from the old system
to the Munibilling system; this should be completed by the end of July.
Water Master Plan RFP
We received proposals from 4 different consultants in response to the Water Master Plan
RFP. SSWD has completed their evaluation of the proposals. Staff would like to review
SSWD’s evaluation with the new General Manager and move forward with negotiations
with the preferred consulting firm.
System Improvement Prioritization report - I have prepared a PowerPoint
presentation summarizing the findings of my evaluation of the District’s water supply
wells. I will be finalizing a written report detailing the results of my evaluation.
Operations Coordination with Sacramento Suburban Water District (SSWD)
SSWD continues to operate and maintain the District’s water supply wells, and has taken
the lead on responding to calls regarding water line/main leaks.

ITEM #20
Status of June Field Matters

Del Paso Manor Water District

REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF 7 JULY 2020
AGENDA ITEM 20
AGENDA
SECTION:

FIELD REPORT

SUBJECT:

June 2020 Field Report

PREPARED BY:

Ken Ingle, Field Supervisor

APPROVED BY:

Jeff Nelson, Management Consultant

The following report summarizes District activities during the period of May 29th through
June 30th, 2020.
Leaks & Service Calls
District staff and/or Sacramento Suburban Water District (SSWD) staff responded to the
following:
• 2 leaks at a district main
• 2 service line leaks that were the district’s responsibility (between corporation and
curb valves)
• 10 leaks that were on the customer’s side of the service
• 1 call received was determined a non-leak (hose left running)
• 17 calls for service (such as valve location) were answered by DPMWD staff.
• 23 Underground Service Alerts (USA) were received and marked by DPMWD staff.
Water Quality Complaints
The district received one telephone complaint regarding odor while running the hot water in
the shower and the kitchen sink. No odor was detected by district staff. It was
recommended that the owner flush the hot water.
Monthly Report to DDW
The monthly Total Coliform Rule report for May was submitted on June 4, 2020. All samples
came back as “Absent”.
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Wells Miscellaneous
The perimeter fence at Well 8 (behind the bowling alley) has again been cut. Nothing was
disturbed in the well site.
Field Miscellaneous
A main line valve failed to open after the shut-down for repairs that were made on the 2800
block of Avalon Drive. SSWD has sent a plan to replace that valve and two others that are
in the same daisy-chained 12 valve main line shut down along the north end of the district
(see attached plan). I recommend that we consider upgrading the Becerra Way intertie
connection with SSWD during this recommended work so that the connection can be
flushed at our end of the connection using the existing wharf hydrant. The plan calls for one
valve on the east side of the hydrant, I recommend adding a valve on the west side as well
and to consider upgrading the hydrant at that time.
Construction Projects
The following is a summary of construction projects (either for the district or by a customer):
• DPM Elementary School
o The fire systems and hydrant installs will be complete in October.
o The school contractor will contact us soon to schedule the flushing of
their fire system so that district staff can monitor the process.
o The contractor is preparing to remove the existing 4-inch domestic
service to the original building.
• 3501 Winding Creek hydrant replacement
o The hydrant upgrade was completed on June 23rd.
o Five residences were without water for less than three hours.
o No complaint calls were received by the district office.
• 3627 Winding Creek
o Construction of the new main residence has started.
o Plans and payment of fees are pending for the replacement water
service.
• 3540 Kings Way
o Construction has completed. The building is ready for occupancy.
o The irrigation system is now in use at that service.
o Meter replacement should be planned soon. GM construction to
provide an estimate for the in-ground meter work.

Del Paso Manor Water District
•

3600 Marconi Avenue
o Both buildings are still empty.
o Only the south building (and cooling tower) currently has a meter and
backflow protection.
o Installation of a new meter at the service connection (and backflow
device to be installed by owner) will need to be revised with SSWD
recommendations of meter in a vault with a bypass for meter testing.
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Ken Ingle
From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Attachments:

Todd Artrip <tartrip@sswd.org>
Monday, June 15, 2020 9:53 AM
Ken Ingle
Matt Underwood; Jeff Nelson; Dan York
FW: 2841 Avalon 4" Mainline Valve
Unit 05A.pdf

Ken,
Recommendation
After reviewing the 13 valve shutdown mentioned below, staff would recommend adding three valves to the system
during the shutdown.
Discussion
Currently the 13 valve shutdown affects approximately 81 customers. Adding the following valves will change the impact
to the number customers, as well as the number of valves needed to operate during emergencies. The following
locations will change the number of affected customers during a shutdown from 81 to:
 2848 Becerra Way – one side of the valve 18 homes affected, the other side of the valve 15 homes affected
 Barbarell Way (no house number on map) – 20 homes affected
 Villavista Way (no house number on map) – 28 homes affected
Please see the redlined map for exact locations.
Regards,

Todd Artrip
Distribution Superintendent
Sacramento Suburban Water District
3701 Marconi Ave Ste 100
Sacramento CA 95821
Office 916-679-2883

From: Ken Ingle <ken@delpasomanorwd.org>
Sent: Tuesday, June 9, 2020 1:06 PM
To: Todd Artrip <tartrip@sswd.org>
Cc: Matt Underwood <munderwood@sswd.org>; Jeff Nelson <jeff@delpasomanorwd.org>
Subject: 2841 Avalon 4" Mainline Valve
This will be a 13 valve shut down that will run the length of Marconi from Eastern to Alamitos (unit maps 1, 4, 5a and
6b).
We should include a second valve at the Y to decrease the shut-down area for future work.
Let me know what additional information you need.
Ken Ingle
1

From: Todd Artrip <tartrip@sswd.org>
Sent: Tuesday, June 9, 2020 10:19 AM
To: Ken Ingle <ken@delpasomanorwd.org>
Cc: Matt Underwood <munderwood@sswd.org>; Jeff Nelson <jeff@delpasomanorwd.org>
Subject: 4" Mainline Valve
Ken,
During today’s shutdown, the 4” mainline valve at 2841 Avalon broke in the closed position. We will coordinate the
replacement and keep you posted.
Thanks,

Todd Artrip
Distribution Superintendent
Sacramento Suburban Water District
3701 Marconi Ave Ste 100
Sacramento CA 95821
Office 916-679-2883
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